
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
OCTOBER 16, 2006 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

October 16, 2006 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317   

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor A.C. Phipps – Evanswood Church 
of God 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Proclamation – Friends of the Troy Public Library Recognition Week, October 
22-28, 2006 .......................................................................................................... 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 226) – Articles IV and 
XXIV – Medical Equipment Sales and Service in the O-1 (Low Rise Office) District 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

D-1 Rezoning Application (File No. Z 180-B) – Proposed Binson’s Home Health Care 
Center, Northwest Corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – R-1B to B-1 2 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: 3 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 3 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 3 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 4 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): 4 

a) Friends of the Troy Public Library Recognition Week – October 22-28, 2006 ...... 4 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  None Submitted 4 

E-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Richard K. 
Gauthier, President – Christmas in Action of Oakland County, Inc. 4 

E-6 Announcement of Public Hearing – Community Development Block Grant  (CDBG) 
2007 Application 4 

E-7 2006 Request for Waive Recapture Form for Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Funds 5 

E-8 Proposed Co-location on Lowery Street Communications Tower 5 

E-9 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Edenberry Sub No. 2 Detention 
Basin Parcel  - Sidwell #88-20-22-228-004 and -005 5 

E-10 Request for Acceptance of an Agreement to Purchase Realty for Public Purposes 
with Gus and Maria Stavropoulos – Industrial Row Parcel No. 34A – Sidwell No. 
88-20-32-152-020, Project No. 06.504.5 and 06.505.5 6 

E-11 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer, Krispy 
Kreme Doughnut Shop – Sidwell #88-20-35-400-021, Project No. 03.933.3 6 



 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 6 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 7 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; Historic 
District Commission; Municipal Building Authority; Parks & Recreation Board; and 
Troy Daze Committee 7 

F-2 Bid Waiver – Purchase of In-Car Video System 9 

F-3 Papadelis v. City of Troy 10 

F-4 Second Amendment to Chapter 42 – Flood Plain Management as Required by 
FEMA for Participation in National Flood Insurance Program 11 

F-5 Preliminary Site Plan Review and Amended Consent Order and Judgment (SP 
883-C) – Heartland Health Care, Southwest Corner of South Boulevard and 
Livernois, Section 3 – O-1 and R-1B 11 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 12 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 12 

a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: Z 714) – Proposed The 
Enclave Senior Housing, North of Long Lake between Livernois and Crooks, 
Section 9 – R-1B to R-EC – October 23, 2006 ................................................... 12 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 12 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 12 

H-1 Proposed Cancellation of November 27, 2006 Regular City Council Meeting and 
Reconsideration of the 2007 City Council Meeting Schedule as Requested by 
Mayor Schilling 12 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 15 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 15 



 

 

REPORTS: 15 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 15 

a) Troy Youth Council/Final – May 24, 2006........................................................... 15 
b) Historic Commission/Final – June 28, 2006........................................................ 15 
c) Election Commission/Final – July 7, 2006 .......................................................... 15 
d) Traffic Committee/Final – July 19, 2006 ............................................................. 15 
e) Historic District Commission/Final – August 15, 2006 ........................................ 15 
f) Troy Youth Council/Draft – August 23, 2006 ...................................................... 15 
g) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – September 6, 2006.... 15 
h) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – September 6, 2006.... 15 
i) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – September 6, 2006.............................. 15 
j) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – September 7, 2006 .................. 15 
k) Planning Commission/Final – September 12, 2006............................................ 15 
l) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – September 26, 2006 ..................... 15 
m) Election Commission/Draft – October 2, 2006.................................................... 15 
n) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – October 5, 2006....................... 15 

J-2 Department Reports: 15 

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of September, 2006... 15 
b) Finance Department – City Council Expense Report for September, 2006........ 15 
c) City Attorney’s Office – 2006 Third Quarter Litigation Report ............................. 15 
d) Council Member Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – MML Convention.......... 15 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 15 

a) Letter of Appreciation to Lt. Rossman from Jim Buell of Alliance Mobile 
Health, Recognizing the Life-Saving Actions and Assistance of Officer Denny.. 15 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 15 

J-5  Calendar 15 

J-6  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding D & K Hannawa v. City of 
Troy 15 

J-7  Communication from Michigan Liquor Control Commission Licensing Division 16 

STUDY ITEMS: 16 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 16 



 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 16 

CLOSED SESSION: 16 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 16 

ADJOURNMENT 16 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 16 

Monday, October 23, 2006 Regular City Council .................................................. 16 
Monday, November 13, 2006 Regular City Council .............................................. 16 
Monday, November 20, 2006 Regular City Council .............................................. 16 
Monday, November 27, 2006 Regular City Council .............................................. 16 
Monday, December 4, 2006 Regular City Council ................................................ 16 
Monday, December 18, 2006 Regular City Council .............................................. 16 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 16, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor A.C. Phipps – 
Evanswood Church of God 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) Proclamation – Friends of the Troy Public Library Recognition Week, October 22-28, 

2006   
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 226) – Articles IV and 
XXIV – Medical Equipment Sales and Service in the O-1 (Low Rise Office) District 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES to amend Articles IV (Definitions) 
and XXIV (O-1 Office Building District) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance to read as written in 
the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 226), City Council Public Hearing 
Draft, as recommended by the Planning Commission and City Management. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 16, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Rezoning Application (File No. Z 180-B) – Proposed Binson’s Home Health Care 
Center, Northwest Corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – R-1B to B-1 

 
Pending Resolution 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the R-C to O-1 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Rochester and Marengo, Section 3, being 39,000 square feet in size, is hereby DENIED for the 
following reasons, as recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission: 
 
1. The application does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan.   
2. Making a recommendation that is contrary to the Future Land Use Plan would weaken 

the validity of the Plan and make it more difficult to defend future zoning decisions.   
3. Rezoning this parcel to B-1 would result in the enlargement of an undesirable 

commercial “spot zone” along an area along the Rochester Road corridor that is planned 
for medium density use.   

4. Approval of the rezoning request could open the door for further commercial rezoning 
applications along the Rochester Road corridor. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the Planning 
Commission to consider amending the Future Land Use Plan in the Rochester Road corridor 
between Square Lake and South Boulevard before the first City Council meeting scheduled for 
March 2006.   
 
Suggested Amendment 
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That the motion be amended by STRIKING “R-C to O-1” and INSERTING the “R-
1B to B-1” in its place. 
 
Yes:  
No: 
  
Proposed Resolution as Amended 
 
Pending Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1B to B-1 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Rochester and Marengo, Section 3, being 39,000 square feet in size, is hereby DENIED for the 
following reasons, as recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 16, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

1. The application does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan.   
2. Making a recommendation that is contrary to the Future Land Use Plan would weaken 

the validity of the Plan and make it more difficult to defend future zoning decisions.   
3. Rezoning this parcel to B-1 would result in the enlargement of an undesirable 

commercial “spot zone” along an area along the Rochester Road corridor that is planned 
for medium density use.   

4. Approval of the rezoning request could open the door for further commercial rezoning 
applications along the Rochester Road corridor. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the Planning 
Commission to consider amending the Future Land Use Plan in the Rochester Road corridor 
between Square Lake and South Boulevard before the first City Council meeting scheduled for 
March 2006. 
 
Yes:  
No:   
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 16, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of October 2, 2006 
be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamation(s) be APPROVED: 
 
a) Friends of the Troy Public Library Recognition Week – October 22-28, 2006  
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  None Submitted 
 
E-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Richard K. 

Gauthier, President – Christmas in Action of Oakland County, Inc. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Christmas in Action 
of Oakland County, Inc., asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in 
the community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license. 
 
E-6 Announcement of Public Hearing – Community Development Block Grant  (CDBG) 

2007 Application 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That a Public Hearing be SCHEDULED before the Troy City Council on 
November 13, 2006 at 7:30 PM or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit for the purpose 
of hearing public comments on the adoption of the Community Development Block Grant 2007 
application. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 16, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

E-7 2006 Request for Waive Recapture Form for Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Funds 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
WHEREAS, The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) mandates that 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) balances not exceed 1.5 times the current 
program year allocation sixty (60) days prior to the end of the program year (February 28th);   
 
WHEREAS, The Oakland County Board of Commissioners adopted a policy allowing 
communities to protect funds from their two most recent program years to help comply with this 
regulation;  
 
WHEREAS, All unobligated 2004 and older funds are at risk of recapture December 31, 2006;  
 
WHEREAS, Troy may protect unobligated 2004 funds from recapture for one additional year by 
requesting a waiver; and  
 
WHEREAS, A separate Waiver request form must be submitted for each 2004 line item to the 
Manager of the Oakland County Community & Home Improvement Division no later than 
Friday, November 24, 2006; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy hereby requests to WAIVE recapture of 2004 
CDBG funds as follows: 
 
Account Number   Project Name    Amount 
  
731815    Public Facilities and   $120,344.00 
     Improvements; 
     Special Assessment    
 
E-8 Proposed Co-location on Lowery Street Communications Tower 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Acknowledgment and 
Lease for the proposed co-location on the Lowery Street communication tower, and the Mayor 
and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Edenberry Sub No. 2 Detention 

Basin Parcel  - Sidwell #88-20-22-228-004 and -005 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 16, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

RESOLVED, That the Warranty Deed for the Edenderry Sub. No. 2 Detention Basin parcel from 
Biltmore Properties Corporation, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-22-228-004 and -005, 
is hereby ACCEPTED; and  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said deed 
with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-10 Request for Acceptance of an Agreement to Purchase Realty for Public Purposes 

with Gus and Maria Stavropoulos – Industrial Row Parcel No. 34A – Sidwell No. 88-
20-32-152-020, Project No. 06.504.5 and 06.505.5 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase Realty for Public Purposes between Gus and 
Maria Stavropoulos, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-32-152-020 (Sellers), and the 
City of Troy (Purchaser) at the agreed price of $20,660.00 is hereby ACCEPTED; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase according to 
the agreement; and  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD the 
Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-11 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer, Krispy 

Kreme Doughnut Shop – Sidwell #88-20-35-400-021, Project No. 03.933.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer from Sears, Roebuck and Co, 
owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-35-400-021, is hereby ACCEPTED, and  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record said easement 
with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 16, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; Historic 
District Commission; Municipal Building Authority; Parks & Recreation Board; and 
Troy Daze Committee     

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments   
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) 
Appointed by Mayor (5) – 4 Year Terms 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 16, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

 
 Unexpired Term 06/30/07 
 
 Unexpired Term 06/30/08 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 

Term Expires 11/01/09 
 

Term Expires 11/01/09 
 
 Term Expires 11/01/09 
 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 
 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 
 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 &/or 2 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07   (Student) 
 
Historic District Commission  One member, an architect if available 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms  Two members, chosen from a list submitted by a 
  duly organized history group or groups 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 16, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council (10) – 3 Year Terms 
 
NOTE: Troy Daze Committee to forward recommendation Term Expires 11/30/06 
 
Troy Daze Committee 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 11/30/09 
 
 Term Expires 11/30/09 
 
 Term Expires 11/30/09 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Bid Waiver – Purchase of In-Car Video System    
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
WHEREAS, Digital in-car video systems are a proven method of evidence gathering and liability 
protection; 
 
WHEREAS, Digital in-car video systems will reduce the amount of time needed to manage, 
review and duplicate recordings; and 
 
WHEREAS, International Police Technologies has offered GSA contract pricing contained in 
GSA-FSS Contract GS-07F-9906H for the equipment;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED and a 
contract to purchase digital in-car video systems including hardware, software, installation and 
training from International Police Technologies is hereby APPROVED for an estimated total 
cost of $291,000.00.  
 
Yes:   
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 16, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

F-3 Papadelis v. City of Troy    
 
(a) Authorization to File an Application for Leave to Appeal to Michigan Supreme 

Court  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED AND DIRECTED to file an 
application for leave to appeal the decision of the Michigan Court of Appeals In Papadelis, et al. 
v Troy, et al., Court of Appeals docket number 268920, to the Michigan Supreme Court.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
and 
 
(b) Authorization to Request Assistance from the Michigan Municipal League Legal 

Defense Fund
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
  
WHEREAS, The City of Troy was involved in litigation with Gust Papadelis, Niki Papadelis, 
Telly’s Greenhouse and Garden Center, Inc., and Telly’s Nursery (plaintiffs) involving the use of 
their residentially zoned property in connection with a nursery and greenhouse business; and  
  
WHEREAS, The Oakland County Circuit Court granted a declaratory judgment in the case, 
holding that the aforesaid use of the residential property was protected under the Michigan 
Right to Farm Act and precluding the City of Troy from enforcement of its zoning ordinance 
provisions against plaintiffs, which include the provisions prohibiting expansion of a 
nonconforming use, and the provisions establishing a minimum size requirement for residential 
parcels to be used for agricultural purposes;  
  
WHEREAS, The Oakland County Circuit Court also ruled plaintiffs were exempt from the 
requirement to obtain a building permit to construct greenhouses and other structures upon 
their residential property under the Agricultural Building Exemption of the State Construction 
Code;  
 
WHEREAS, The Michigan Court of Appeals has recently affirmed the foregoing decisions of the 
Oakland County Circuit Court in Papadelis v Troy, unpublished opinion per curiam of the Court 
of Appeals, issued September 19, 2006 (Docket No. 268920), and further ruled the provisions 
of Troy’s zoning ordinance regulating the size, location, lot coverage and minimum setbacks 
with respect to the buildings and structures on plaintiffs property were unenforceable;  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 16, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

WHEREAS,  The Troy City Council has authorized the Troy City Attorney to file an application 
for leave to appeal the Court of Appeals decision to the Michigan Supreme Court; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy believes that the issues involved in the aforesaid case will have 
statewide impact, and are such that the Michigan Municipal League Defense Fund may wish to 
provide supportive aid by filing an amicus curiae brief with the Michigan Supreme Court;  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy desires to receive the assistance of the Michigan Municipal 
League Defense Fund; 
  
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is AUTHORIZED TO REQUEST 
assistance from the Michigan Municipal League Legal Defense Fund in the Papadelis v. Troy 
case, as described above and it is agreed that acceptance of such support shall constitute an 
agreement by the City of Troy to abide by any conditions placed upon the aid offered by the 
Fund.  
 
Yes: 
No:  
 
F-4 Second Amendment to Chapter 42 – Flood Plain Management as Required by 

FEMA for Participation in National Flood Insurance Program    
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council APPROVES the attached ordinance amendments to Chapter 
42, Flood Plain Management, for the purpose of identifying flood map panel numbers 
26125C0527F, 0529F, 0531F, 0532F, 0533F, 0534F, 0537F, 0541F, 0542F, 0551F, 0552F, 
0553F, 0554F, 0561F, and 0562F in Section 12 of the ordinance; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Council APPROVES the attached resolution to 
Manage Floodplain Development for the National Flood Insurance Program. 
 
Yes: 
No:  
 
F-5 Preliminary Site Plan Review and Amended Consent Order and Judgment (SP 883-

C) – Heartland Health Care, Southwest Corner of South Boulevard and Livernois, 
Section 3 – O-1 and R-1B    

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That the revised Preliminary Site Plan for Heartland Health Care 120 Bed Nursing 
Home, including 16 additional off-street parking spaces, located on the southwest corner of 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 16, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

South Boulevard and Livernois, Section 3, as indicated on  Preliminary Site Plan Sheet SP1, 
prepared by Nowak & Fraus, is hereby APPROVED; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Stipulated Second Amendment to the Consent Order 
and Judgment in the matter of Rodney D. Hyduk, DDS, MSD, Trustee of the Rodney D. Hyduk 
Trust Agreement, dated 2/19/82 as amended and successors in trust, successor to Rodney D. 
Hyduk   v.  City of Troy, a Michigan Municipal corporation and Healthcare and Retirement 
Corporation of America an Ohio Corporation, as Intervening Plaintiff (Oakland County Circuit 
Court Case No. 83-265736-CZ) is hereby APPROVED, and the Mayor and Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document on behalf of the City of Troy, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Assistant City Attorney is AUTHORIZED TO SIGN the 
Stipulated Second Amendment of Consent Order and Judgment for entry with the court. 
 
Yes: 
No:  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: Z 714) – Proposed The Enclave 

Senior Housing, North of Long Lake between Livernois and Crooks, Section 9 – R-1B to 
R-EC – October 23, 2006   

    
G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 Proposed Cancellation of November 27, 2006 Regular City Council Meeting and 
Reconsideration of the 2007 City Council Meeting Schedule as Requested by 
Mayor Schilling 

 
(a) Cancellation of November 27, 2006 City Council Meeting
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, November 27, 2006 
be CANCELLED. 
 
Yes:  
No: 
 
(b) Reconsideration of Resolution #2006-07-316 – 2007 City Council Meetings  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 16, 2006 
 

- 13 - 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution #2006-09-316, Moved by Broomfield and Seconded by Fleming, 
as it appears below be RECONSIDERED by City Council: 
 

RESOLVED, That the City Council SHALL HOLD Regular meetings according to the 
following schedule at 7:30 pm:  
 
Monday, January 8 & 22 
Monday, February 5, 19 & 26   
Monday, March 5, 19 & 26 
Monday, April 2, 16 & 23 
Monday, May 14 & 21 
Monday, June 4 & 18 
Monday, July 9 & 23 
Monday, August 6 & 20 
Monday, September 10, 17 & 24 
Monday, October 1, 15 & 22 
Monday, November 12, 19 & 26 
Monday, December 3, 17 (two meetings due to end of month holidays) 

 
Liquor Violation Hearing Dates: 

 
Wednesday, February 7 7:30 pm  
Wednesday, February 28 7:30 pm   

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Special meetings MAY BE SCHEDULED as 
needed. 

 
Yes: All-7  

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
Recommended Substitute Amendment to Resolution #2006-09-316: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Resolution #2006-09-316 by 
SUBSTITUTING the following motion: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 16, 2006 
 

- 14 - 

RESOLVED, That the City Council SHALL HOLD Regular meetings according to the following 
schedule at 7:30 pm:  
 
Monday, January 8 & 22 
Monday, February 5 & 19   
Monday, March 5 & 19  
Monday, April 2 & 16 
Monday, May 14 & 21 
Monday, June 4 & 18 
Monday, July 9 & 23 
Monday, August 6 & 20 
Monday, September 10 & 17 
Monday, October 1 & 15 
Monday, November 12 & 19 
Monday, December 3 & 17 
 
Liquor Violation Hearing Dates: 
 
Wednesday, February 7 7:30 pm  
Wednesday, February 28 7:30 pm   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Special meetings MAY BE SCHEDULED as needed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
Proposed Reconsidered Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council SHALL HOLD Regular meetings according to the following 
schedule at 7:30 pm:  
 
Monday, January 8 & 22 
Monday, February 5 & 19   
Monday, March 5 & 19  
Monday, April 2 & 16 
Monday, May 14 & 21 
Monday, June 4 & 18 
Monday, July 9 & 23 
Monday, August 6 & 20 
Monday, September 10 & 17 
Monday, October 1 & 15 
Monday, November 12 & 19 
Monday, December 3 & 17 
 
Liquor Violation Hearing Dates: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 16, 2006 
 

- 15 - 

 
Wednesday, February 7 7:30 pm  
Wednesday, February 28 7:30 pm   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Special meetings MAY BE SCHEDULED as needed. 
 
Yes:  
No: 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced  
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Troy Youth Council/Final – May 24, 2006  
b) Historic Commission/Final – June 28, 2006 
c) Election Commission/Final – July 7, 2006 
d) Traffic Committee/Final – July 19, 2006  
e) Historic District Commission/Final – August 15, 2006 
f) Troy Youth Council/Draft – August 23, 2006  
g) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – September 6, 2006  
h) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – September 6, 2006 
i) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – September 6, 2006  
j) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – September 7, 2006 
k) Planning Commission/Final – September 12, 2006  
l) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – September 26, 2006 
m) Election Commission/Draft – October 2, 2006  
n
 

) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – October 5, 2006  

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of September, 200

mber, 2006  
6  

b) Finance Department – City Council Expense Report for Septe
c) City Attorney’s Office – 2006 Third Quarter Litigation Report  

) Council Member Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – MML Convention d
 
J-3 Letters of Appreciation:    
a) Letter of Appreciation to Lt. Rossman from Jim Buell of Alliance Mobile Health, 

Recognizing the Life-Saving Actions and Assistance of Officer Denny   
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding D & K Hannawa v. City of 

Troy 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 16, 2006 
 

- 16 - 

J-7  Communication from Michigan Liquor Control Commission Licensing Division  
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, October 23, 2006 ........................................................Regular City Council 
Monday, November 13, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 20, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 27, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 4, 2006 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 18, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



FRIENDS OF THE TROY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
RECOGNITION WEEK 

OCTOBER 22 – 28, 2006 
 
 
WHEREAS, The work of the Friends of the Troy Public Library generates the resources for 
four hundred programs, much needed equipment, support for children’s summer reading, and 
many special events throughout the year; and 
 
WHEREAS, The work of the Friends of the Troy Public Library highlights the fact that our 
library is the cornerstone of the community, providing opportunities for all to engage in the joy of 
life-long learning and connect with the thoughts and ideas of others from ages past and present; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, The Friends understand the critical importance of well-funded libraries and 
advocate to ensure that our library has the resources it needs to provide a wide variety of 
services to all ages including access to print and electronic materials, along with expert 
assistance in research, readers’ advisory, and children’s and senior services; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Friends’ gift of time and commitment to the library sets an example for all that 
volunteerism leads to positive, civic engagement and the betterment of our community. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
proclaims the week of October 22-28, 2006 as Friends of the Troy Public Library Week in 
the City of Troy;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy urges everyone to join 
the Friends of the Troy Public Library, and thank our volunteers for all they do to make our 
library and community a great place to live and learn.  
 
Signed this 16th day of October 2006. 
  
 
 
 
.  
 

 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01a



 
 
 
 
October 9, 2006 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing - Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 226) – Articles 

IV and XXIV – Medical Equipment Sales and Service in the O-1 (Low Rise Office) District 
 
 
Background: 
 
• A public hearing is scheduled for the October 16, 2006 City Council meeting. 
 
• The draft zoning ordinance text amendment would permit the retail sales of medical equipment 

by right in the O-1 Office district.  It also defines the term retail sale of medical equipment.   
 

• The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on September 12, 2006, and 
recommended approval of the proposed text amendment.  This is a City Management initiated 
zoning ordinance text amendment.   

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• The proposed text amendment would expand the range of uses permitted within the O-1 Low 

Rise Office District. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning Ordinance. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



Policy Considerations: 
 
• A text amendment to the O-1 Office Building provisions would apply to all O-1 property in the 

City.  City Council should determine whether this is an appropriate use in the O-1 Office 
Building zoning district. 

 
• The item is consistent with City Council Goal II (Retain and attract investment while 

encouraging redevelopment) and Goal VI (Protect life and property). 
 
 
Options: 
 
• City Management recommends approval of the proposed text, as recommended by Planning 

Commission. 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Draft ZOTA 226 
 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 226 Medical Goods in O-1\CC Public Hearing 10 16 06.doc 
 
 
 



PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 226) 
City Council Public Hearing Draft 

Text Amendment for Retail Sale of Medical Equipment 
in the O-1 Zoning District 

 
CITY OF TROY 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 39 
OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Amendment to Chapter 39 
 
Chapter 39 of the City of Troy Code is amended by adding sections 04.20.108 and 24.20.05, 
to read as follows: 
 
04.20.108 MEDICAL EQUIPMENT SALES AND SERVICE:  A facility engaged in the retail 

sale and / or rental of medical equipment for home use, including the provision of 
related professional assistance. 

 
 
24.00.00 ARTICLE XXIV   O-1 OFFICE BUILDING DISTRICT 
 
24.20.05 Medical equipment sales and service. 
   
 
Section 2.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, 
whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the ____ 
day of ________________, 2006. 
 
 
 
______________________ 
Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
______________________ 
Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 226 Medical Goods in O-1\ZOTA 226 CC Public Hearing Draft.doc 



 1

 
 
 
October 10, 2006 
 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Postponed Item – Rezoning Application – Proposed Binson’s Home Health Care 

Center, Northwest corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – R-1B to B-1 (Z 180-B) 
 
 
Background: 
 
• The Planning Commission recommended denial of the rezoning request at the June 14, 2005 

Regular meeting.  On August 1, 2005, City Council postponed the item to the first Regular City 
Council meeting in March 2006.  On March 6, 2006, City Council postponed the item to the first 
Regular City Council meeting in August 2006.  On August 14, 2006, City Council postponed 
the item to the first Regular City Council meeting in October 2006. 

 
• The Future Land Use Plan classifies the Rochester Road frontage in this area as Medium 

Density Residential.  The Medium Density Residential classification correlates with the R-1T 
Zoning District in the Plan.   

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• The application is not consistent with the Future Land Use Plan. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT
 

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



 2

Policy Considerations: 
 
• Denial of the rezoning request would be consistent with City Council Goal VI, Protect Life and 

Property. 
 
 
Options: 
 
• City Council can adopt the rezoning request, deny the rezoning request or postpone the item 

to a future meeting. 
 
• City Management recommends denial of the rezoning application.   
 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:  ________________________________ 
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File / Z 180-B 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-180 B BINSONS\CC Postponed Item Z-180 B 10 16 06.doc 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE

CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1B TO B-1



VILLA PARK

MARENGO

DEETTA

QUILL CREEK

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

WOODSIDE

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED BINSON'S HOME HEALTH CARE CENTER
FROM R-1B TO B-1
NW CORNER OF ROCHESTER RD & MARENGO
SEC. 3 (Z-180 B)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 100
Feet



VILLA PARK

MARENGO

DEETTA

QUILL CREEK

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

WOODSIDE

CJ-32

(PUD)

(R-1B)

(B-1) (CR-1)

(E-P)

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED BINSON'S HOME HEALTH CARE CENTER
FROM R-1B TO B-1
NW CORNER OF ROCHESTER RD & MARENGO
SEC. 3 (Z-180 B)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 100
Feet





CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 2, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, October 2, 2006, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:33 P.M. 
 
Brother Ben Jackson – The Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-Day Saints -Troy Ward gave the 
Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
Wade Fleming (Absent) 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 No Presentations      
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1  No Public Hearings 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items     
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2006-10-381 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That all items on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as presented. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None  
Absent: Fleming  
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 2, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2006-10-381-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of September 25, 
2006 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Snow Removal 

Rental Equipment Including Operators    
 
Resolution #2006-10-381-E-4a 
 
WHEREAS, On September 19, 2005, a contract to provide seasonal requirements of snow 
removal rental equipment including operators with an option to renew for one (1) additional 
season was awarded to the sole bidder, Sterling Topsoil & Grading, Inc. of Sterling Heights, MI, 
at hourly rates contained in the bid tabulation opened July 25, 2005, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting (Resolution #2005-09-447-E4); and  
 
WHEREAS, Sterling Topsoil & Grading, Inc. has agreed to exercise the one-year option to 
renew under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the 2005 season; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby EXERCISED 
with Sterling Topsoil & Grading, Inc. to provide snow removal rental equipment including 
operators; and Florence Cement Company of Shelby Township and DiPonio Contracting LLC of 
Utica are hereby AWARDED contracts at prices established as a result of an informal quote 
process dated August 8, 2005, and detailed on Appendix A, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City staff is AUTHORIZED TO EXTEND the 
hourly contract prices to other contractors, after the successful vendors have been employed, to 
speed the snow removal process during times of snow emergencies with contracts expiring 
April 14, 2007, and are CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission of properly executed 
contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Street Light 

Installation/Replacement    
 
Resolution #2006-10-381-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish all labor, tools, equipment, transportation services, and 
traffic controls to provide two-year requirements of street, parking lot, and athletic field light 
installation and replacement with an option to renew for one (1) additional year is hereby 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 2, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

AWARDED to the sole bidder, Harlan Electric Company of Rochester Hills, MI, at unit prices 
and discounts contained in the bid tabulation opened September 13, 2006, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
E-5 Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Watermain and Abandonment of Part of 

Original Watermain Easement, Woodland Elementary School – Sidwell #88-20-04-
276-046, Project No. 04.905.3   

 
Resolution #2006-10-381-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the Permanent Easement for Watermain from Avondale School District, 
owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-04-276-046, is hereby ACCEPTED; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO SIGN a 
Quit Claim Deed to complete the abandonment of that part of the original watermain easement 
that is no longer needed; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
easement and deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Subcontract No. 06-5417/S1 with Greenstar & Associates, LLC for Right-of-Way 

Services for the Reconstruction and Widening of Wattles Road, 1,000 Feet East 
and West of Rochester Road – Project No. 01.106.5   

 
Resolution #2006-10-381-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Subcontract No. 06-5417/S1, between the City of Troy and Greenstar & 
Associates, LLC for right-of-way services for the reconstruction of Wattles Road, east and west 
of Rochester Road, is hereby APPROVED at an estimated cost to the City of Troy not to 
exceed $50,000.00, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
subcontract, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of the meeting.  
 
E-7 Subcontract No. 06-5418/S1 with Greenstar & Associates, LLC for Right-of-Way 

Services for the Reconstruction and Widening of Rochester Road, Torpey to 
Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5   

 
Resolution #2006-10-381-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That Subcontract No. 06-5418/S1, between the City of Troy and Greenstar & 
Associates, LLC for right-of-way services for the reconstruction of Rochester Road, between 
Torpey and Barclay is hereby APPROVED at an estimated cost to the City of Troy not to 
exceed $75,000.00, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
subcontract, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of the meeting.  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 2, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

E-8 Private Agreement for 5660 New King Street Project No. 06.911.3 – The Learning 
Experience   

 
Resolution #2006-10-381-E-8 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Talon TLE-Troy LLC, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of a public water main, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
E-9 Approval of Co-location on Sylvan Glen Communications Tower    
 
Resolution #2006-10-381-E-9 
 
RESOLVED, That the Restated and Amended Acknowledgement and Lease between 
MetroPCS Michigan, Inc. and the City of Troy for co-location on the Sylvan Glen Golf Course 
tower is hereby APPROVED, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the documents on behalf of the City, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments: Parks & Recreation Board; 
and Troy Daze Committee     

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments  - No Appointments 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2006-10-382 
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Beltramini   
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby NOMINATED to serve on the Troy Daze 
Committee for the vacancy with the term expiring on November 30, 2007: 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Nominated by: Broomfield  Nominated by: Schilling  
Jeffrey Stewart  Jeffrey Super 
Beltramini   Howrylak 
Broomfield   Lambert   
Stine     
Schilling     



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 2, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

Yes: All-6  
No: None  
Absent: Fleming 
 
Vote on Resolution to Appoint Members to the Parks & Recreation Board 
 
Resolution #2006-10-383 
Moved by Lambert    
Seconded by Beltramini    
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Parks & Recreation Board  
Appointed by Council (10) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Orestes (Rusty) Kaltsounis Term Expires 09/30/09 
 
Stuart Redpath  Term Expires 09/30/09 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None  
Absent: Fleming 
 
Vote on Resolution to Appoint Members to the Troy Daze Committee 
 
Resolution #2006-10-384 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the appointment of the following person is hereby CONFIRMED BY THE 
CITY COUNCIL to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Troy Daze Committee  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Jeffrey Stewart Unexpired Term 11/30/07 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None  
Absent: Fleming 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 2, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 226) – Articles IV and XXIV – 

Medical Equipment Sales and Service in the O-1 (Low Rise Office) District – October 16, 
2006  

b) Proposed Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) and Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Grid4 Communications – 2107 Crooks Road – 
October 23, 2006  

Noted and Filed 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  No Council Referrals 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1   No Council Comments 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – May 18, 2006 
b) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – September 6, 2006  
c) Planning Commission/Draft – September 12, 2006  
d) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – September 19, 2006 

Noted and Filed 
J-2 Department Reports: None Submitted 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to City Manager from Peter Clarkson of Ice Cream Express in 

Appreciation of the Assistance and Efforts of the Troy Daze Staff  
b) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Robert Leman Shelby Township Chief of Police 

Regarding the Cooperation and Efforts Received from Officer Bednard and K9 Ronnie  
c) Letter of Appreciation to City Manager and City Council from Sandy Jegersky Macknis, 

Chairperson of Student Volunteers for Troy Daze Festival, Regarding Troy Daze and the 
Outstanding Efforts of the Volunteer Students, Cindy Stewart, Jeff Biegler, Lt. Scherlinck 
and the Troy Daze Committee     

Noted and Filed 
 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   
a) Resolution from the City of Orchard Lake Village Opposing the K-12 Initiative on the 

November 7, 2006 Ballot 
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 2, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

J-5  Calendar 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-6  Communication from Purchasing Director Jeanette Bennett Regarding Local 

Preference Issues 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-7  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding Papadelis v Troy 

Noted and Filed 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session   
 
Resolution #2006-10-385 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e) – Troy v Premium Construction, and also MCL 15.268 (h) – MCL 
15.243 (g). 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None  
Absent: Fleming 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 7:55 P.M. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 8:04 P.M. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:03 P.M. 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



FRIENDS OF THE TROY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
RECOGNITION WEEK 

OCTOBER 22 – 28, 2006 
 
 
WHEREAS, The work of the Friends of the Troy Public Library generates the resources for 
four hundred programs, much needed equipment, support for children’s summer reading, and 
many special events throughout the year; and 
 
WHEREAS, The work of the Friends of the Troy Public Library highlights the fact that our 
library is the cornerstone of the community, providing opportunities for all to engage in the joy of 
life-long learning and connect with the thoughts and ideas of others from ages past and present; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, The Friends understand the critical importance of well-funded libraries and 
advocate to ensure that our library has the resources it needs to provide a wide variety of 
services to all ages including access to print and electronic materials, along with expert 
assistance in research, readers’ advisory, and children’s and senior services; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Friends’ gift of time and commitment to the library sets an example for all that 
volunteerism leads to positive, civic engagement and the betterment of our community. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
proclaims the week of October 22-28, 2006 as Friends of the Troy Public Library Week in 
the City of Troy;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy urges everyone to join 
the Friends of the Troy Public Library, and thank our volunteers for all they do to make our 
library and community a great place to live and learn.  
 
Signed this 16th day of October 2006. 
  
 
 
 
.  
 

 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03a



 

 

 
Date October 9, 20

 
TO: Phillip L. Nels

 
FROM: Tonni L. Bart

 
SUBJECT: Request for R

Gauthier, Pre
  
Background: 
 
 Attached is a request fro

Oakland County, Inc., see
obtaining a charitable gam
raise the funds necessary 
practice to support the app

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial cons

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal conside

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy consid

 
Options: 
 
 It is recommended that Tro

from Richard K. Gauthier, 
they be recognized as a 
obtaining a charitable gam

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT 
06 

on, City Manager 

holomew, City Clerk 

ecognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Richard K. 
sident – Christmas in Action of Oakland County, Inc.  

m Richard K. Gauthier, President of Troy’s Christmas in Action of 
king recognition as a nonprofit organization status for the purpose of 
ing license to conduct fundraising events and/or raffles every year to 
to fund their annual workday activities. It has been City Management’s 
roval of such requests. 

iderations associated with this item. 

rations associated with this item. 

erations associated with this item. 

y City Council approve the proposed resolution to approve the request 
President of Christmas in Action of Oakland County, Inc., asking that 
nonprofit organization operating in the community for the purpose of 
ing license. 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05











holmesba
Text Box

holmesba
Text Box



















































































































 

 
 
October 4, 2006 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
    Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director   
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing – Community Development Block Grant      

(CDBG) 2007 Application 
 
Background: 
 
  The City of Troy is required by Oakland County Division of Community & Home Improvement to 

advertise and conduct a Public Hearing on the Program Year 2007 CDBG application. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 

 
Options: 
 
 It is recommended that Council authorize a public hearing for November 13, 2006 at 7:30 PM for 

the adoption of the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2007 application. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-06



 

 
 
October 3, 2006 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
    Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director   
 
SUBJECT:   2006 Request to Waive Recapture Form 
 
Background: 
 
 The Community and Home Improvement Division of Oakland County has advised us, as a 

standard practice, to submit a waiver request to protect year 2004 Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) funds from recapture for one additional year.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Absent a waiver all unobligated 2004 funds would be recaptured December 31, 2006. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 

 
Options: 
 
 City management recommends submitting the 2006 request to waive recapture form 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-07





TO: Members of Troy City Council   
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE: October 11, 2006 

  
  

SUBJECT: Proposed co-location on Lowery Street communications tower  
 

 

 
 
MetroPCS has requested an opportunity to co-locate on the Lowery Street 

telecommunications tower.  When the tower was initially constructed, it was designed to 
allow up to four such co-locations, and therefore this co-location would not require any 
modifications to the tower, other than the placement of the equipment and the equipment 
shelter.  The tower is currently owned by A T & T, and therefore MetroPCS has reached a 
separate agreement with A T & T for this requested co-location.  The tower will eventually 
be the property of the City of Troy, pursuant to the terms of the Lease Agreement.   

 
Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, MetroPCS will pay the same amount of 

rent to the City that the other providers are currently paying.  They have also agreed to be 
bound by the same terms and conditions as the other providers, with the exception of the 
slight modification of the insurance requirements.  These terms are reflected in the 
Restated and Amended Acknowledgement and Lease and its attachments.  

 
A proposed resolution approving this Acknowlegement and Lease between the 

City of Troy and MetroPCS Michigan, Inc. is provided for your consideration.   
 
As always, if you have any questions, please let me know.  
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-08



ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND LEASE 
 

 This Acknowledgment and Lease (the “Acknowledgment”) is made this 
_____ day of ____________, 2006, between MetroPCS Michigan, Inc.  
(hereinafter MetroPCS), a Delaware corporation, whose business address is 
28505 Schoolcraft Rd., Building 6, Livonia, MI 48150 and the City of Troy 
(hereinafter “City”), a Michigan municipal corporation, whose address is 500 W. 
Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 48084.  
 

A. The City and Wireless PCS, Inc., d/b/a AT & T Wireless Services (AT 
& T) entered into a Ground Lease dated October 6, 1998 (the “Lease”) 
pertaining to the lease of a certain part of the City’s property located at 
205 Lowery Street, Troy, Michigan (the “Property”), to enable AT & T to 
construct a communication tower and equipment shelter (collectively 
referred to as the “Tower”) for use by AT & T, the City, and by other 
telecommunications companies.  

 
B. Under the terms of the Lease, AT & T is required to allow other 

telecommunications companies to utilize the Tower constructed by AT 
& T, with the rental for such use of the Tower space and a part of the 
City’s property payable to the City.     

 
C. MetroPCS is interested in leasing a part of the Tower and having 

equipment on the ground next to the Tower, as authorized by the 
Lease.     

 
D. The parties are desirous of setting forth their agreements with respect 

to the utilization of the Tower.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, MetroPCS and the City agree as follows:  
 

1. Lease.  The City leases to MetroPCS and MetroPCS leases from 
the City a portion of the real estate adjacent to the Tower, not 
exceeding 15x 20‘, for placement of an outdoor cabinet for 
MetroPCS’s equipment for the Tower, together with a non-exclusive 
easement for ingress and egress over the adjacent real property as 
legally described in the access easement and the utilities easement 
under the Lease.  The location of the outdoor cabinet shall be in a 
mutually advantageous location, which shall be agreed to in 
advance of placement in writing by both the City of Troy as well as 
MetroPCS.   MetroPCS’s Facilities and easement are collectively 
referred to as “MetroPCS’s Premises”.   This does not preclude a 
replacement or a repair of the City’s antennae that currently exist 
on the tower.   

 



2. Consideration and Term.  MetroPCS shall complete its co-
location on the Tower at the sole expense of MetroPCS, in 
accordance with the attached specifications completed by a 
registered structural engineer, which are incorporated by reference.  
These modifications are Tenant Improvements, and shall comply 
with the conditions and requirements of paragraph 6 of the lease 
between A T & T and the City of Troy (attached and incorporated 
by reference) concerning Tenant Improvements.  In addition, 
MetroPCS shall pay the City as annual rent for the Premises each 
year during the term of this Lease the rent specified on the attached 
Exhibit A.  The annual payments are non-refundable.  The annual 
payments shall be made on or before July 1 of each year.  
However, the first payment (July 1, 2006-June 30, 2007) shall not 
be due until the commencement of construction, which shall be not 
later than December 1, 2006.  The payment for the first year shall 
be pro-rated from July 1 to the date that construction commences.  
The term of this Acknowledgement shall be three (3) years with two 
(2) five year renewals and a third renewal term of three (3) years.  

 
3. Notification.  Any written communication between the parties shall 

be sent to the following:  
 

(a) City:  City Manager, City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver 
Rd., Troy, MI 48085, with a copy sent to City Attorney, 
City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI  48084 

 
(b) MetroPCS Michigan, Inc., 28505 Schoolcraft Road, 

Building 6, Livonia, MI 48150, with a copy to MetroPCS 
Michigan, 8144 Walnut Hill Lane, Suite 800, Dallas, TX 
75231.   

 
4. Consent to be bound by Lease.  MetroPCS agrees and 

acknowledges that it has reviewed the terms of the Lease between 
the City of Troy and AT & T.  Except as expressly set forth in this 
Acknowledgement and Lease, MetroPCS agrees to be bound by 
the terms of the Lease (paragraphs 1-36 of the Lease) as if it were 
a tenant under such Lease.  Such terms are incorporated by 
reference into this Acknowledgement.  

 
5. Insurance and Indemnity.  Prior to the commencement of 

construction, MetroPCS shall provide the City with copies of 
insurance naming the City as an additional insured party, as 
required by paragraph 21 of the Lease.  MetroPCS agrees to 
assume the risks of a tenant under such Lease and indemnity the 
City in accordance with the terms set forth in the Lease, including 



but not limited to, the indemnification pertaining to hazardous 
substances.  

 
6. Named Insured.  All policies, except for business interruption and 

worker’s compensation policies, shall name Landlord and its 
respective officers, boards, commissions, employees, agents, and 
contractors, as their respective interest may appear as additional 
insured (herein referred to as the “Additional Insured.”)  These 
Named Insured provisions replace the Named Insured provisions 
as set forth in Paragraph 21 (g) of the Lease.     

 
7. Cancellation of Policies of Insurance.  All insurance policies 

maintained pursuant to this Lease shall contain the following 
endorsement:   

 
Should any of the insurance policies maintained pursuant to the 
Lease be cancelled before the expiration date thereof, the issuing 
insurer will mail 30 days written notice to the City. 

 
This Cancellation of Policies of Insurance provision replaces and 
amends Section 21 (i), the Cancellation of Policies of Insurance 
Provisions, as set forth in the attached Lease. 
 

8. Insurance Deductibles.  All insurance policies may be written with 
deductibles not to exceed $100,000, unless approved in advance 
by Landlord.  This provision amends the first sentence of Section 
21 (k) of the attached Lease.  

 
9. Waiver of City’s Lien.  The City waives any lien rights it may have 

concerning MetroPCS’s Facilities that are deemed MetroPCS’s 
personal property and not fixtures, and MetroPCS has the right to 
remove the same at any time without the City’s consent.  

  
10. Assignment.  MetroPCS may not assign, or otherwise transfer all 

or any part of its interest in this Acknowledgment or in MetroPCS’s 
Premises without the prior written consent of the City; provided 
however that MetroPCS may assign or transfer this 
Acknowledgement without prior approval by the City to any of its 
partners, subsidiaries, affiliates, or to a person or entity acquiring by 
purchase, merger or operation of law a majority of the value of the 
assets of MetroPCS or to its lenders.  The City may assign this 
Acknowledgment upon written notice to MetroPCS, subject to the 
assignee assuming all of the City’s obligations herein, including but 
not limited to those set forth in Paragraph 5 above.   

 



11. Authority.  By execution of this Acknowledgement, each party 
acknowledges that it has the authority to execute this document on 
behalf of the party for whom it is signing this Agreement.  

 
12. Inconsistencies.  In the case of any inconsistencies between the 

terms and conditions contained in the Lease Agreement entered 
into October 6, 1998, between the City and AT & T, hereby 
acknowledged, the terms and conditions herein shall control.  

 
13. Termination.  This Acknowledgement may be terminated without 

further liability on thirty (30) days prior written notice as follows:   
 

(a) by either party upon a default of any covenant, 
condition or term hereof by the other party, which 
default is not cured within sixty (60) days of receipt of 
written notice of default;  

(b) by MetroPCS if it does not obtain, after reasonable 
efforts, licenses, permits, or other approvals necessary 
to the construction or operation of MetroPCS’ Facilities; 

(c) by MetroPCS if MetroPCS is unable to occupy or utilize 
MetroPCS Premises, despite its reasonable efforts, due 
to ruling or directive of the FCC or other governmental 
or regulatory agency, including but not limited to a take 
back of frequencies; or  

(d) by MetroPCS if MetroPCS determines that MetroPCS 
Premises are not appropriate for its operations for 
technological reasons, including without limitation signal 
strength or interference, due to interference from the 
City or from third parties, provided that MetroPCS must 
present City with documentation reasonably acceptable 
to City evidencing such technological problems.      

 
14. Interference.  City shall not permit any other tenant or occupant of 

any portion of the Property to engage in any activities or operations 
which interfere with the communications operations of MetroPCS.  
In the event such interference occurs and does not cease promptly, 
the parties acknowledge that continuing interference will cause 
irreparable injury to MetroPCS, and therefore MetroPCS shall have 
the right to bring a court action against the interfering third party to 
enjoin such interference or to terminate this Acknowledgement 
immediately upon notice to City.  Under no circumstances shall City 
be liable for interference caused by third parties.  

 



 
IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have executed this 
Acknowledgment on the date set forth below.  
 
 
WITNESS:      MetroPCS Michigan, Inc.  
 
_______________________  _________________________ 
 
      By:  Robert A. Young  

Its:  Executive Vice President of 
Market Operations   

   
_______________________  

 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this ______ day of 
____________, 2006 by Robert A. Young, Executive Vice President of Market 
Operations, MetroPCS Michigan, Inc.  
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Notary Public 
       ___________ County, ________ 
       My Commission Expires _______  
 



 
 
 
WITNESS:       CITY OF TROY 
 
   _________________________  By:  _______________________ 

       Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
        
  _________________________  By:  _______________________ 

     Tonni L. Bartholomew 
     City Clerk  
 
 

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this ______ day of 
____________, 2006 by the Mayor of the City of Troy, and Tonni L. 
Bartholomew, Troy City Clerk.     
 
       __________________________ 
       Notary Public 
       ___________ County, Michigan 
       My Commission Expires _______  
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

RENT 
 

Years 1-3        Annual Rent 
 
 

1. July 1, 2006- June 30, 2007    $16,800 
2. July 1, 2007- June 30, 2008    $16,800 
3. July 1, 2008- June 30, 2009    $16,800 
 
Years 5-9 
 
4. July 1, 2009- June 30, 2010    $19,200 
5. July 1, 2010- June 30, 2011    $19,200 
6. July 1, 2011- June 30, 2012     $19,200 
7. July 1, 2012- June 30, 2013    $19,200 
8. July 1, 2013- June 30, 2014    $19,200 

 
Years 9-13 

 
9. July 1, 2014- June 30, 2015    $21,600 
10. July 1, 2015- June 30, 2016    $21,600 
11. July 1, 2016- June 30, 2017    $21,600 
12. July 1, 2017-June 30, 2018    $21,600 
13. July 1, 2018-June 30, 2019    $21,600 
 
Years 14-16 

 
14. July 1, 2019-June 30, 2020    $24,000 
15. July 1, 2020-June 30, 2021    $24,000 
16. July 1, 2021-June 30, 2022    $24,000 

 
 



















































campbellld
Text Box
E-09









campbellld
Text Box
E-10















campbellld
Text Box
E-11









 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
October 9, 2006 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director 
Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police   

 
SUBJECT:  Bid Waiver – Purchase of In-Car Video System 
 
Background: 
 
 Approximately seven years ago the police department purchased an analog, 8mm format, in-car 

audio-video system.  All patrol, animal control, and road patrol Police Service Aide units are 
equipped with recording units.  The system has proven effective.  It provides excellent evidence 
on a variety of criminal cases (most notably, drunk driving cases) and enables the department to 
reduce civil liability. 

 The MML, MMRMA, International Association of Chiefs of Police (IACP), Police Executive 
Research Forum (PERF) all highly recommend the use of in-car recording systems.   

 Due to age and constant use, the current system is failing.  Recording units work sporadically and 
audio quality is poor.  Cars are often out of service due to camera failure and we have lost 
valuable evidence due to camera/recorder malfunctions.  A considerable amount of staff time is 
spent repairing the system as well as processing and copying tapes. 

 Department research determined that the system should be replaced with a digital system. The 
upgrade to digital technology allows for easier and quicker access to recordings, recording review 
via the City network, and wireless transfer of the recorded data to a server. The digital system not 
only provides a much higher quality recording, but also reduces the staff time required to process 
and copy tapes. 

 Over 10 different digital in-car systems were reviewed.  It was determined that the VisionHawk 
system, manufactured by International Police Technologies, best fits the department’s needs and 
had the highest quality and reliability. Research included demonstrations by the various 
manufacturers of both the in-car equipment and the management software, interview of users of 
the various systems, and site visits. The VisionHawk system was found to be more user friendly, 
easier to learn and manage, and had the highest level of customer satisfaction. VisionHawk offers 
technology and features not available on other systems: such as, the capability to simultaneously 
record audio transmissions from multiple transmitters, and the ability for officers to monitor the 
audio transmissions of other officers. 

 
1 of 2

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



 
October 9, 2006 
 
To: Phillip Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Waiver – Purchase of In-Car Video System 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Funding for this project will be available from Police Communications A/C#401325.7980.050, 

Uniform Patrol #401315.7978.010, and Police Administration Drug Enforcement 
#401305.7978.065.  Upon purchase of the system, the MMRMA will reimburse the City of Troy 
$25,000.00. 

 International Police Technologies (IPT) holds a Federal GSA contract (GS-07F-9906H) for the 
equipment. 

 Approval to utilize the GSA Schedule for this purchase authorized by the State of Michigan 
Department of Management and Budget through the 1122 Counterdrug Program. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 Since Federal bidding regulations are different than the City’s, each time GSA pricing is offered, 

City management requests a bid waiver if federal pricing is being extended by the contract holder.  
In this case, IPT is the GSA contract holder. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The purchase of the VisionHawk in-car recording system will increase the Police Department’s 

efficiency through digital technology (Goals #1 – “Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City 
government and #3 – Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally”), and 
provides excellent evidence on a variety of criminal cases (most notably, drunk driving cases) and 
enables the department to reduce civil liability (Goal #6 - “Protect life and property”). 

 
Options: 
 
 City management recommends that a formal bid procedure is waived, and that the City Council 

authorize the purchase of a digital in-car video system from International Police Technologies 
(IPT) at an estimated total cost of approximately $291,000.00 using GSA-FSS Contract GS-07F-
9906H pricing.  This cost includes the in-car units, server, associated software, wireless transfer 
equipment, installation, and training. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 
 







TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council   
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: October 4, 2006 

  
  

SUBJECT: Papadelis v. City of Troy  
 

 

The City has the option to pursue an appeal of the recent Papadelis v. Troy decision to the 
Michigan Supreme Court.  Such a pursuit necessarily requires an application for leave to appeal the 
decision of the Michigan Court of Appeals.  

According to Court of Appeals decision, the Right To Farm Act (RTFA) allows the Papadelis 
family to use all of their residentially zoned property for the nursery and greenhouse operation, even 
though such use is an expansion of a nonconforming use.  In addition, the Court also excused the 
Papadelis family from obtaining building permits from the City for any structures on their property.  
The Court of Appeals based this exemption on the State Construction Code Act, which states that 
permits are not required for a building or structure that is “incidental to the use for agricultural 
purposes of the land on which the building is located if it is not used in the business of retail trade.”  
The Court of Appeals determined that since no transfer of cash occurred within the greenhouses or 
the other structures on the subject property, there was no requirement to comply with the permitting 
process for the Papadelis property.  The Court also preempted the provisions of Troy’s zoning 
ordinance that regulate building size, lot coverage, and setbacks for these residential parcels.   

 
The initial lawsuit between the City of Troy and the Papadelis family was filed in May 1991, in 

an effort to stop the continuing expansion of Telly’s Nursery in a residentially zoned district.  The 
litigation between the parties has continued, as the expansion has continued.  If left unchallenged, 
the Court of Appeals decision could conceivably lead to additional expansion onto other residential 
properties owned by the Papadelis family.  However, Council should be aware that if an appeal to 
the Michigan Supreme Court is filed, then the Papadelis family will probably seek to reinstate their 
claims against the City employees, who they argue have allegedly violated their civil rights.     

 
On a broader note, the Court of Appeals decision is one of many recent decisions construing 

RTFA in such a fashion as to eliminate any local control over residentially zoned property.  Such 
decisions, as the Court noted, allows businesses to move into established residential neighborhoods 
and start a farm or farm operation in contravention of local zoning ordinances.  Because this 
decision may have state wide impact, the Michigan Municipal League Legal Defense Fund may be 
interested in filing an amicus brief if the City chooses to pursue an application for leave to appeal to 
the Michigan Supreme Court.     

We have attached two separate resolutions for your consideration.  The first resolution 
authorizes our office to file an application for leave to appeal to the Michigan Supreme Court in the 
Papadelis v. City of Troy  lawsuit.  The second resolution requests Amicus Brief participation from 
the Legal Defense Fund of the Michigan Municipal League.    

 
If you have any questions concerning the above, please let us know.      

campbellld
Text Box
F-03



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
October 9, 2006 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer    
 
SUBJECT:   Second Amendment to Chapter 42 – Flood Plain Management 

As Required by FEMA for Participation in National Flood Insurance 
Program  

 
Background: 
 
 On September 18, 2006 City Council approved Resolution #2006-09-372 that amended Chapter 

42, Flood Plain Management, for the purpose of adopting the new Digital Flood Insurance Rate 
Maps (DFIRMS). 

 Although Chapter 42 refers to the 100-year flood boundaries as those in “the most current report” 
the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) has advised us that they would prefer 
that the specific map panel numbers be identified in the ordinance.  A revision to Section 12 of 
Chapter 42, adding map panel numbers 26125C0527F, 0529F, 0531F, 0532F, 0533F, 0534F, 
0537F, 0541F, 0542F, 0551F, 0552F, 0553F, 0554F, 0561F, and 0562F will satisfy this 
requirement. 

 In addition, MDEQ has requested a resolution be adopted to affirm the city’s responsibility to 
Manage Floodplain Development for the National Flood Insurance Program under various state 
laws and City Ordinance Chapter 42, as amended. 

  
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 

 
Legal Considerations:  
 
 Adoption of amendments to Chapter 42 and the resolution to Manage Floodplain Development for 

the National Flood Insurance Program are required for participation in the program. 
 Maintain property owner eligibility for new and renewal of flood insurance policies. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Maintain the city’s participation in the program, which began in 1983 (Goal VI). 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04



 Reduce flood hazards to persons and property, reduce public expenditures precipitated by flood 
damage and provide for the availability of flood insurance and federal funds or loans within the 
community (Goal VI). 

 
Options: 
 
 It is recommended that Council approve the proposed resolution and amendments to Chapter 42 

of the City Ordinance Code.  
 
  
 
Approved for Submittal:         __________________________ 
                Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Council Reports and Communications\NFIP FEMA\Second42Amend.doc 

























 
 
 
 
October 10, 2006 
 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW AND AMENDED CONSENT ORDER AND 

JUDGMENT (SP 883-C) – Heartland Health Care, Southwest corner of South Boulevard 
and Livernois, Section 3 – O-1 and R-1B 

 
Background: 
 
• The applicant received Final Site Plan Approval for a 120-bed nursing home on November 30, 

2005.  After being granted Final Site Plan Approval, the applicant determined that there was a 
need for 16 additional parking spaces.  These have been incorporated in the proposed parking 
area on the southwest side of the building.  The additional parking area will not affect 
compliance with any Zoning Ordinance provisions, including required landscaping. 

 
• The Planning Commission recommended approval of the revised site plan on September 12, 

2006. 
 
• The applicant worked closely with the Meadowland Estates Homeowners Association 

throughout the design of the project.  The Homeowners Association provided a letter endorsing 
the revised site plan. 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• The use of the parcel is controlled by a consent judgment that will need to be amended to 

accommodate the revision to the site plan.  City Council is responsible for approving the 
amended consent judgment, which includes Preliminary Site Plan Approval authority.   

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



Policy Considerations: 
 
• The item is consistent with City Council Goal II (Retain and attract investment while 

encouraging redevelopment) and Goal VI (Protect life and property). 
 
Options: 
 
• City Management recommends approval of the revised site plan and Consent Order and 

Judgment. 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:  __________________________________ 
       Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Preliminary Site Plan Sheet SP1, prepared by Nowak & Fraus, date stamped October 3, 2006 by 

Planning Department. 
3. Amended Consent Order and Judgment. 
4. Letter from Meadowland Estates Homeowners Association dated July 12, 2006. 

 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SP 883-C 
 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 883-C Heartland Health CJ Sec 3\SP 883-C CC Memo 10 16 06.doc 
 
 



R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

 R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

PR
E

P
AR

E
D

 B
Y 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TR

O
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
EP

T.

SUBJECT PARCEL



FIE
LD

S
TO

N
E

D
O

N
A

LD
SO

N

WILDWOOD LANE

INGRAM

WHITE TAIL

O
M

A
R 

C
T

NUTHATCH

W SOUTH BLVD

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

SITE PLAN REVIEW
AMENDMENT TO CONSENT JUDGMENT
HEARTLAND HEALTH CARE NURSING FACILITY
S SIDE OF SOUTH BLVD. E OF LIVERNOIS
SEC. 3  (SP-883)

SUBJECT PROPERTY

0 100 200 30050
Feet ³



FIE
LD

S
TO

N
E

D
O

N
A

LD
SO

N

WILDWOOD LANE

INGRAM

WHITE TAIL

O
M

A
R 

C
T

NUTHATCH

W SOUTH BLVD

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

CJ-3

(R-1B)

(B-1) (O-1)

SITE PLAN REVIEW
AMENDMENT TO CONSENT JUDGMENT
HEARTLAND HEALTH CARE NURSING FACILITY
S SIDE OF SOUTH BLVD. E OF LIVERNOIS
SEC. 3  (SP-883)

SUBJECT PROPERTY

0 100 200 30050
Feet ³

















 
 
 
October 9, 2006 
 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing - Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: 

Z 714) – Proposed The Enclave Senior Housing, North of Long Lake between 
Livernois and Crooks, Section 9 – R-1B to R-EC 

 
 
Background: 
 
• The applicant proposes rezoning an 8.61-acre parcel from R-1B One Family Residential to R-EC 

Residential Elder Care.  There are also 1.67 acres of rights-of-way that the applicant intends to 
incorporate into the future development.  The applicant submitted an application to vacate 
these rights-of-way. 

 
• The applicant provided a concept plan proposing a senior housing development with 22 homes 

for seniors, 48 senior apartments, 48 assisted living units and 48 nursing care units.   
 
• Access to the parcel is provided by Houghten Street from the north and Stalwart Street from 

the east.  The parcel does not have frontage on a major thoroughfare.  Development on this 
parcel would generate not only vehicular traffic from residents, staff and visitors, but also truck 
traffic to serve the facility.  Without a direct connection to Long Lake Road, development on the 
property would be a significant negative impact on the existing single-family neighborhood.    
 

• The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on September 12, 2006, and 
recommended denial of the proposed rezoning.   

 
• A public hearing is scheduled for the October 23, 2006 City Council meeting. 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations associated with this application. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



Legal Considerations: 
 
• The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Low Density Residential and Open 

Space.  The parcel has been planned for Low Density Residential since 1965.  The Low 
Density Residential classification correlates with the R-1A through R-1E and CR-1 zoning 
districts.  The application therefore does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan. 

 
• The application does not meet the Location Standards of Section 19.40.00. 
 
• City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning District Map. 
 
• A valid protest petition has been submitted which will require five (5) City Council votes to 

adopt the rezoning request. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• Denial of the rezoning application would be consistent with City Council Goal VI, Protect life 

and property. 
 
 
Options: 
 
• City Council may approve the rezoning, deny the rezoning or postpone the rezoning. 
 
• City Management recommends denial of the proposed rezoning, as recommended by Planning 

Commission. 
 
• No action until public hearing on October 23, 2006. 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Letter from applicant. 
3. Letters of opposition. 
 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-714 The Enclave Sec 9\Announce CC Public Hearing 10 23 06.doc 
 
 
 



R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

 R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

SUBJECT PARCEL



B
E

R
W

Y
C

K

V
IR

G
IL

IA

S I75

H
O

U
G

H
TE

N

STALWART

FABIUS

MCKINLEY

N 
I75 

O
FR

P
N 

I75

NOTTINGHAMCT

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

HAMPSHIRE

D
A

N
IE

LS

W
R

IG
H

T

WINCHEST ER

REZONING  REQUEST
PROPOSED SENIOR HOUSING DEVELOPMENT
FROM R-1B (ONE FAMILY RES.) TO R-EC (RES. ELDER CARE)
E SIDE OF I-75, N OF LONG LAKE
SEC. 9  (Z-714)

SUBJECT PROPERTY

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³



B
E

R
W

Y
C

K

V
IR

G
IL

IA

S I75

H
O

U
G

H
TE

N

STALWART

FABIUS

MCKINLEY

N 
I75 

O
FR

P
N 

I75

NOTTINGHAMCT

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

HAMPSHIRE

D
A

N
IE

LS

W
R

IG
H

T

WINCHEST ER

(R-1B)

(M-1)

REZONING  REQUEST
PROPOSED SENIOR HOUSING DEVELOPMENT
FROM R-1B (ONE FAMILY RES.) TO R-EC (RES. ELDER CARE)
E SIDE OF I-75, N OF LONG LAKE
SEC. 9  (Z-714)

SUBJECT PROPERTY

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³



2006 z 714 sec 9 senior living.dgn  1/19/2006 2:33:29 PM































































 

 

 
Date October 10, 2

 
TO: Mayor and C

 
FROM: Phillip L. Nels

Tonni L. Bart
 

SUBJECT: Proposed Ca
Reconsiderat
Mayor Schilli

  
Background: 
 
 Mayor Schilling requeste

November 27, 2006 Regul
City Council meeting in 
meetings. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial cons

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal conside

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy consid

 
Options: 
 
 It is recommended that 

November 27, 2006 City C
meeting in months where 
“Study” meetings as neede

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT 
006 

ity Council 

on, City Manager 
holomew, City Clerk 

ncellation of November 27, 2006 Regular City Council Meeting and 
ion of the 2007 City Council Meeting Schedule as Requested by 
ng  

d that I prepare proposed resolutions for the cancellation of the 
ar City Council Meeting as well as the elimination of the third Regular 
the months which contain three regularly scheduled City Council 

iderations associated with this item. 

rations associated with this item. 

erations associated with this item. 

Troy City Council approve the proposed resolutions to cancel the 
ouncil meeting as well as the third regularly scheduled City Council 

there are three meetings and schedule Special meetings and Special 
d. 

campbellld
Text Box
H-01



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   May 24, 2006 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on May 24, 2006 at 7:00 PM at the 
Troy Community Center, 3179 Livernois.  Katie Thoenes and Nicole Vitale called the 
meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski  

Andrew Corey 
Maxine D’Amico  
Rishi Joshi 
Jia (Lisa) Luo  
Anupama Prasad (Secretary) 
Joseph Niemiec  
Kristin Randall  
Neil Shaw 
Katie Thoenes (Co-chair) 
Nicole Vitale(Co-chair) 
Karen Wullaert , Late  

MEMBERS ABSENT: Jessica Kraft    
VISITORS: Troy Youth Council Applicants 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2006-05-06 
  Moved by   Bozimowski 
  Seconded by  Corey 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of April 26, 2006 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 11 
            No:       None  
  Absent:  2  - Kraft, Wullaert 
 
3.   Report: Updated through April meeting - To note and file 
 
4. Interviews: Applicants to the TYC 

4 candidates were interviewed.  6 applicants were on file.  All applicants were 
considered, including those who were not present at the interviews.  Interviews lasted 
approximately three minutes each.  The list of applicants is below.   
 
*Highlighted names denote absence from the interviews. 

 
Last  Name First Name Grade High School 

Desai Nikita 9 Troy High 
DeSantis Adam 11 Athens High 
Gabriel Alex 11 U of D Jesuit High 
Krishna Arthi 10 International Academy High 
Serkh Kirill  11 International Academy High 
Subramanian Shruthi 9 Troy High 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   May 24, 2006 
 
 

 2

5. Resolution to Recommend 1 Applicant for Seat on the Troy Youth Council 
 Resolution # TY-2006-05-07 

  Moved by   Niemiec 
  Seconded by  Bozimowski 

 
RESOLVED, That Alex Gabriel is recommended for appointment to fill the 
vacant seat on the Troy Youth Council. 

  Yes:  12  
  No:  0  
  Absent: 1 - Kraft 
 
  Resolution # TY-2006-05-08 
  Moved by   Bozimowski 
  Seconded by  Niemiec 

 
RESOLVED, That Arthi Krishna is recommended as alternate for appointment 
to fill the vacant seat on the Troy Youth Council.  This recommendation will be 
used should the applicant in the previous resolution does not fulfill 
committment. 

  Yes:  12 
  No:  0 
  Absent: 1 - Kraft 

 
6. Futures Process 

Committee representatives reported the end results of each committee and 
plan on attending the final meeting scheduled for June 8 at the Community  
Center.  

 
7.  Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
  Resolution # TY-2006-05-09 

  Moved by  Corey 
  Seconded by  Niemiec 

  
 RESOLVED that Jessica Kraft is excused. 

  Yes:  12 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  1 – Kraft  
 
8.  Troy Daze Festival Update –  

-Corey reported that Officer Kaptur contacted him requesting that he join her 
during the final hour on Friday or Saturday to get a better understanding of 
Police duties during the festival and reasons for the changes in 2006.   
-Youth Council members are asked to volunteer during the Troy Daze Festival 
again this year.  Detailed information will come in August. 
 
 
 

 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   May 24, 2006 
 
 

 3

9. Youth Council Comments –  
Lisa Luo thanked the members of Youth Council and expressed her enjoyment 
over the past year.  Lisa will be attending the University of Michigan in the fall.  
Council members thanked Lisa and wished her luck. 

 
10. Public Comments - None 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:55 P.M.   
 
_______________________________________ 
Katie Thoenes, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

Reminder Next Meeting: August 30 at 7:00 P.M. @ Troy Community Center 



1 

TROY HISTORIC COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL JUNE 28, 2006 
 
The rescheduled meeting of the Troy Historic Commission was held Wednesday, June 
28, 2006 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting was proceeded by the 
annual tour of the grounds at 7:00 P.M. Rosemary Kornacki called the meeting to order 
at 8:25 P.M.  
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Rosemary Kornacki 
   Roger Kaniarz 
   Kevin Lindsey 
   Vera Milz 
   Remedios Solarte 
   Terry Navratil  
 
   Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 
   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
 ABSENT: Brian Wattles 
 
Resolution #HDC-2006-06-001 
Moved by Navratil  
Seconded by Lindsey 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Brian Wattles be approved 
Yes: 6 Kornacki, Kaniarz, Lindsey, Milz, Solarte and Navratil  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #HDC-2006-06-002 
Moved by Lindsey  
Seconded by Kaniarz 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of March 28, 2006 be approved 
Yes: 6 Kornacki, Kaniarz, Lindsey, Milz, Solarte and Navratil  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Capital Projects 
Fencing 
Fence was installed along Lange Street by American Fence and Supply. They 
will complete installation of the gate after the driveway behind the General Store 
is paved. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



2 

Interior Painting 
Action Painting Co. of Southfield reneged on their contract to paint the interior of 
Poppleton School, the Print Shop and Town Hall. The contract was awarded to 
Danmar Painting for $6,275.00. 
 
Exterior Painting 
Sherwin Williams paint representatives collected paint samples from the General 
Store. The building is delaminating- shedding the paint and a thin layer of wood 
fibers. They recommend stripping the building completely and applying one thin 
layer of Woodscapes, a semi-opaque wood stain that is porous and will allow any 
moisture in the wood to wick though.  Detroit Spectrum stripped off a 4-foot 
square section on the back of the building to determine time and materials costs 
for stripping. Danmar painting applied Woodscapes to half of the area. We were 
not pleased with the look as the oils in the cedar bled through, leaving a dirty 
look. Danmar will pickle the other half of the test area to see if that yields a better 
result.  

 
Windows 
The contract to repair and reglaze the windows in Poppleton and the Print Shop 
and fabricate six over six windows for the Log Cabin was awarded to Turner 
Restorations for $7,450. That work will begin the week of June 26. 
 
Roofs 
Mark Stimac has been delayed in working on the specifications for new cedar 
shake roofs for the Cabin, Print Shop, General Store and Cobbler’s Shed (behind 
the Caswell House).  
 
Paving 
The City of Troy Streets Department is paving the driveway area behind the 
General Store. The 10-foot wide drive will run from the road to the back of the 
building. On the east side of the drive they will install a geo-web product to create 
a stable base for parking three vehicles. Additional geo-web on the west side of 
the drive will provide a stable base for parking one vehicle. The work will be 
completed in time for the July 15 Motoring Memories Car Show. 
 

B. Programs 
See Attendance Reports 
 
270 people attended Heritage Day on June 24. The event is in direct competition 
with Opa Fest, which has been dramatically expanded and draws thousands of 
people.  Loraine feels that it is time to rethink this event or delete it. 
 
Planning for Motoring Memories, the new summer car show is nearly complete. 
There are sixty cars, 10 motorcycles and a few bicycles entered in the show. The 
committee has secured two Platinum Sponsors ($500 each), Coffee Net and EM 
Schroeder Insurance. Gold Sponsors ($100) include Gil’s Northwood Collision, 
Chip’s Caddies, American Cleaning, and Uncles Luke’s Feed Store. Master Auto 



3 

Service is a Silver Sponsor and Trevarrow Hardware is a Bronze Sponsor.  The 
event will include live music, good food, a vintage fashion show and children’s 
activities. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
A. Grants 

The Study Committee submitted our list of preferred surveyors. We are waiting 
for the AAM map coordinator to tell us which member from our list is available. 

 
B. Interns 

Three interns will be working at the museum during the Spring /Summer Term. 
Stacey Miller is working on the National Historic Place Application for the 
1927 Township Hall. 
 
Natalie Bojesen and Candice Belanger are English majors at Oakland 
University.  They have completed a review of all our archive materials 
related to the schools and are collecting additional information from the 
Birmingham Press archives housed at Baldwin Public Library.  They are 
also interviewing Viola  Smith and Ruth Wass. 

 
C. Village Landscaping 

Michele Dunham and a team of volunteers have planted gardens in front of Town 
Hall, the Church and the Pass-a-long Garden in front of the Parsonage. Michele 
is developing plans for the garden between Caswell and Poppleton School. 

 
D. New Acquisitions 

See attached reports. 
 

E. Eagle Scouts: 
Rashid Sidwah, a freshman at Troy High School is completing an Eagle Scout 
Project to build latticework enclosures around the five air conditioning 
condensers adjacent to the buildings. Rashid has met with Steve Pallotta to 
verify the design and has received $250 contributions each from the Troy 
Historical Society and the Troy Garden Club. The balance of the $1,200 he 
needs to finish the work will come from smaller donations and a bottle drive. 
Rashid anticipates his project will be completed in August. 

 
Two additional Eagles Scout nominees have asked for projects at the Museum. 
These may include installation of a wash yard behind Caswell and benches for 
the story tree, also in the setback area. 

 
F. Troy Historical Society Liaison Report 

The Heritage Campaign work presently includes the car show and an outreach, 
awareness- building project called Tell Us Your Story for the business 
community. 
 

G. Reports and Communications 



4 

a. Staff 
No report. 

b. Commission 
Brain Wattles is recuperating from a heart attack. The commission passed 
on best wishes for a speedy recovery. 

 
The Troy Historic Commission Meeting was adjourned at 9:40 p.m.  The next regular 
meeting will be held Tuesday, September 26, 2006 at the Troy Museum & Historic 
Village at 7:30 PM. 
 

 
 
Rosemary Kornacki 
Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Final July 7, 2006 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held Friday, July 7, 2006, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 8:17 
AM.  

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  Timothy Dewan 
ALSO PRESENT: Deputy City Clerk Barbara Holmes 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of March 20, 2006  
 
Resolution #EC-2006-07-8 
Motion by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Monday, March 20, 2006, are APPROVED as submitted. 
 
Yes:  All-2 
Absent: Dewan  

Approval of Election Inspector Assignments for the August 8, 2006 Primary 
Election 
 
Resolution #EC-2006-07-9 
Motion by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 
RESOLVED, That Election Inspectors be appointed for the Tuesday, August 8, 2006 
Primary Election, as presented by the City Clerk, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  All-2 
Absent: Dewan  

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:22 AM. 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



















1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL AUGUST 15, 2006 
 
A special meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was held Tuesday, 
September 19, 2006 at City Hall. Barbara Chambers called the meeting to order at 
7:32P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT Barbara Chambers 
   Muriel Rounds 
   Sabah Jihad 
   Paul Lin 
   Ann Partlan  
   Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 
 
    ABSENT Robert Hudson 
   Marjorie Biglin 
 
      GUEST Brian Murphy, Asst. City Manager 
 
0Resolution #HDC-2006-08-001 
Moved by Partlan  
Seconded by Rounds 
 
RESOLVED, That the absences of Biglin and Hudson be excused. 
Yes: 5 Chambers, Rounds, Jihad, Lin, and Partlan  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #HDC-2006-09-002 
Moved by Rounds  
Seconded by Partlan 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the June 28, 2006 meeting be approved. 
Yes: 5 Chambers, Rounds, Jihad, Lin, and Partlan 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Request by the City of Troy Re. 3645 Crooks Road 
The Asst. City Manager explained to the Commission that the City of Troy has 
purchased the historic resource at 3645 Crooks Road. The site is zoned 
residential but has been a legal, non-conforming commercial site since 1955. The 
city will use the site as the field office for the Engineering Department. The 
building was inspected and does require immediate repairs to the roof, a new 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



2 

rear door and a new HVAC system. Additionally, the city wishes to install an 
asphalt pathway behind the house. Mr. Murphy provided Building Operations 
photos of the roof and building exterior. He also indicated that in the future he 
would like to see a complete historic restoration of the building. The Commission 
members agreed that they and the Historic District Study Committee would 
support that effort and research the original appearance of the building. 

 
Resolution #HDC-2006-08-003 
Moved by Partlan  
Seconded by Rounds 
 
RESOLVED, That the request by the City of Troy to install a new roof, back door 
and asphalt pathway to the historic resource at 3645 Crooks Road be approved.  
 
Yes: 5 Chambers, Rounds, Jihad, Lin, and Partlan 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
The Troy Historic District Commission Meeting was adjourned at 7:52 PM. The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, September 19, 2006 at 7:30 p.m. at City Hall in 
Conference Room C. 

 
 
 
Barbara Chambers 
Chairperson 

 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   August 23, 2006 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on August 23, 2006 at 7:00 PM at the 
Troy Community Center, 3179 Livernois.  Katie Thoenes and Nicole Vitale called the 
meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski  

Andrew Corey 
Maxine D’Amico  
Ales Gabriel 
Jessica Kraft (Co-chair) 
Kristin Randall (Secretary) 
Neil Shaw 
Nicole Vitale (Co-chair) 
Karen Wullaert , Late  

MEMBERS ABSENT: Rishi Joshi, Joseph Niemiec, Anupama Prasad 
Katie Thoenes (late)    

VISITORS: Sandy Macknis, Troy Daze Committee 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2006-08-10 
  Moved by   Vitale 
  Seconded by  Bozimowski 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of May 24 26, 2006 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 9 
            No:       None  
  Absent:  4  - Joshi, Prasad, Niemiec, Thoenes 
 
3.   Welcome New Council Member: Alex Gabriel was welcomed to the Youth Council. 
 
4. Attendance Report:  

Attendance record sheet was distributed with meeting dates for 2006 – 07 
Youth Council year.  Attendance records were cleared to begin new year.   

 
5. Futures Process: 

 No update at this time.  Final report has not been completed. 
  
6. Troy Daze Festival: 

-Sandy Macknis asked to Youth Council to volunteer at the headquarters 
booth to help distribute t-shirts, oversee volunteers and fill in where needed.  
Macknis distributed available times for sign up.  Macknis stated that all 
volunteers were required to pay the $7 entry fee in order to volunteer.   
-Discussion on how to stay current with Troy Daze information.  Mercer will 
bring a sign up sheet with Troy Daze meeting dates in September so Youth 
Council representatives can attend Troy Daze meetings throughout the year.    
–Corey to join Officer Kaptur Friday evening to experience problem areas.  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   August 23, 2006 
 
 

 2

 
7.  Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
  Resolution # TY-2006-08-11 

  Moved by  Kraft 
  Seconded by  Randall 

  
 RESOLVED that Anupama Prasad, Katie Thoenes (late) are excused. 

  Yes:  11 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  3 – Joshi, Niemiec, Prasad  
 
8.  Youth Council Comments –  

-None. 
 
9. Public Comments –  

-None. 
 
10. Public Comments - None 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:26 P.M.   
 
_______________________________________ 
Nicole Vitale, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: October 25 at 7:00 P.M. @ Troy Community Center 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
SEPTEMBER 6, 2006 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, September 6, 2006, at the lower level Conference Room at City Hall.  
Chairman Stewart called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
 
Present:  M. Apte, Alternate  C. Buchanan, member  
   S. Burt, member  A. Done, member   
   P. Hammond, member T. House, member   
   G. Hyun, student  P. Manetta, member 
   D. Pietron, member  J. Stewart, member 
   C. Weidman, student S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent:        A. Fuhrman, Alternate, EA 
 
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF August 2, 2006 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of August 2, 2006 be approved.  Supported 
by Done.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM IV – SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
 
ITEM V – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
The Committee discussed revisions to our brochure such as larger font size, bold 
lettering, and the elimination of shading, italics and possibly quotes.  Stewart will report 
our findings to Community Affairs who will then bring them to the graphic designer.  A 
motion was made by Buchanan, seconded by Hammond, to allow Stewart and Grusnick 
to approve changes in the text and graphics. 
 
ITEM VI – NEW BUSINESS 
We welcome Margaret Apte, a citizen of Troy, as an alternate member to our 
Committee. 
 
We will be following Robert’s Rules of Order for the meetings. 
 
It was agreed that most City Council meetings do not necessitate the need for an 
assigned Committee member’s attendance.  Werpetinski volunteered to review the 
Council agendas and inform Grusnick and Stewart of any items of interest to this 
Committee. 
 
Weideman and Hyun will research handicap accessible festivals held in Michigan.  They 
will also be researching the existence of other Advisory Committees for Persons With 
Disabilities across the Country as well as websites and adaptive recreation programs. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
SEPTEMBER 6, 2006 

 2

 
ITEM VII – REPORTS 
 
ITEM VIII – PUBLIC COMMENT 
Carlene Geier, Troy resident, attended our meeting.   
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 
Buchanan has talked to Don Mouch, Troy Fire Dept., regarding a Disaster 
Preparedness Plan for persons with disabilities. 
 
Hammond asked for additional assistance for a resident in her trailer park that is unable 
to maneuver in his home due to health problems. 
 
Pietron asked for support at the Senior Advisory Meeting 9/7/06 re: the discontinuance 
of the Meals On Wheels program.   
 
Werpetinski has requested that precinct workers not use handicapped parking so that it 
is left available for persons with disabilities coming to vote.  She would like a directory of 
resources for assistance to be created for the use of Troy citizens.   
Werpetinski also suggested that all correspondence going out from this Committee be 
submitted through Grusnick before being submitted to City Council. 
 
Weideman and Hyun reported that they both will be researching ways to streamline 
students with disabilities into activities and functions at their respective High Schools 
and help them to become more involved. 
 
House suggested that there be no food served at our meetings. 
 
Manetta questioned the size and location of the handicap parking spaces near the 
restaurant at the shopping center at Long Lake and John R.  Grusnick will review the 
plans. 
 
Stewart asked if this Committee would be interested in getting involved in activities for 
special needs children or adults. 
 
Stewart suggested an after-meeting ‘brainstorming study session’.  Feedback would  
then be forwarded to members and included on future agendas. 
 
Stewart suggested that any member of this Committee could write an article of news for 
the Observer Eccentric as a guest columnist. 
 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Done made a motion to adjourn at 9:37 which was seconded by Burt. 
 
 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
SEPTEMBER 6, 2006 

 3

 
 
 
                                                                 _______________________________ 
                       Jeff Stewart, Chairperson 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
SEPTEMBER 6, 2006 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, September 6, 2006, at the lower level Conference Room at City Hall.  
Chairman Stewart called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
 
Present:  M. Apte, Alternate  C. Buchanan, member  
   S. Burt, member  A. Done, member   
   P. Hammond, member T. House, member   
   G. Hyun, student  P. Manetta, member 
   D. Pietron, member  J. Stewart, member 
   C. Weidman, student S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent:        A. Fuhrman, Alternate, EA 
 
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF August 2, 2006 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of August 2, 2006 be approved.  Supported 
by Done.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM IV – SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
 
ITEM V – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
The Committee discussed revisions to our brochure such as larger font size, bold 
lettering, and the elimination of shading, italics and possibly quotes.  Stewart will report 
our findings to Community Affairs who will then bring them to the graphic designer.  A 
motion was made by Buchanan, seconded by Hammond, to allow Stewart and Grusnick 
to approve changes in the text and graphics. 
 
ITEM VI – NEW BUSINESS 
We welcome Margaret Apte, a citizen of Troy, as an alternate member to our 
Committee. 
 
We will be following Robert’s Rules of Order for the meetings. 
 
It was agreed that most City Council meetings do not necessitate the need for an 
assigned Committee member’s attendance.  Werpetinski volunteered to review the 
Council agendas and inform Grusnick and Stewart of any items of interest to this 
Committee. 
 
Weideman and Hyun will research handicap accessible festivals held in Michigan.  They 
will also be researching the existence of other Advisory Committees for Persons With 
Disabilities across the Country as well as websites and adaptive recreation programs. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
SEPTEMBER 6, 2006 

 2

 
ITEM VII – REPORTS 
 
ITEM VIII – PUBLIC COMMENT 
Carlene Geier, Troy resident, attended our meeting.   
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 
Buchanan has talked to Don Mouch, Troy Fire Dept., regarding a Disaster 
Preparedness Plan for persons with disabilities. 
 
Hammond asked for additional assistance for a resident in her trailer park that is unable 
to maneuver in his home due to health problems. 
 
Pietron asked for support at the Senior Advisory Meeting 9/7/06 re: the discontinuance 
of the Meals On Wheels program.   
 
Werpetinski has requested that precinct workers not use handicapped parking so that it 
is left available for persons with disabilities coming to vote.  She would like a directory of 
resources for assistance to be created for the use of Troy citizens.   
Werpetinski also suggested that all correspondence going out from this Committee be 
submitted through Grusnick before being submitted to City Council. 
 
Weideman and Hyun reported that they both will be researching ways to streamline 
students with disabilities into activities and functions at their respective High Schools 
and help them to become more involved. 
 
House suggested that there be no food served at our meetings. 
 
Manetta questioned the size and location of the handicap parking spaces near the 
restaurant at the shopping center at Long Lake and John R.  Grusnick will review the 
plans. 
 
Stewart asked if this Committee would be interested in getting involved in activities for 
special needs children or adults. 
 
Stewart suggested an after-meeting ‘brainstorming study session’.  Feedback would  
then be forwarded to members and included on future agendas. 
 
Stewart suggested that any member of this Committee could write an article of news for 
the Observer Eccentric as a guest columnist. 
 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Done made a motion to adjourn at 9:37 which was seconded by Burt. 
 
 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
SEPTEMBER 6, 2006 

 3

 
 
 
                                                                 _______________________________ 
                       Jeff Stewart, Chairperson 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                       SEPTEMBER 6, 2006 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, September 06, 2006, in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Rick Sinclair 
   Tom Rosewarne  
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Marlene Struckman, Housing Inspector Supervisor 
    
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF AUGUST 2, 2006. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of August 2, 2006 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 - VARIANCE REQUEST.  MR. & MRS. SANTA, 2245 ALEXANDER, for relief 
of Chapter 83 to install a picket fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 36” 
to 42” picket fence in the front setback adjacent to the property line along Paris.  This 
property is a double front corner lot.  As such, it has front yard setback requirements 
along both Alexander and Paris streets.  Chapter 83 limits the height of fences in the 
front setbacks at this location to 30” in height. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that this property previously obtained a variance for a 42” fence 
along the rear yard in the front yard setback along Paris. 
 
Mr. Santa was present and stated that he wanted the fence for the safety of his child 
and that it would go with the fence at the rear of the property.  He said there is a chain 
link fence owned by the City of Troy that is over 4’ high. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained if he installed the fence along the northwest corner it could be 
higher but he would have to go along the house. 
 
The petitioner stated he would not go past the front of the home and it is non-obscuring. 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                       SEPTEMBER 6, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that a fence 30” in height would be permitted, but the petitioner is 
requesting a 6” to 12” variance. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked what the chain link fence was for. 
 
Mr. Richnak responded that it was for the Henry Graham Drain.  It is owned by Oakland 
County but is maintained by the City of Troy. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked about the fence that was at the rear of this property.  Mr. Stimac 
stated that it also required a variance to erect a 42” high fence for that portion in the 
front yard setback along Paris. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the petitioner would consider reducing the length of the fence 
approximately 10’-15’.  The petitioner stated he wanted it to look good. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked why they left a gap in the fence that would allow children to get out 
of the yard.  The petitioner stated he was planning to park a car there in the future and 
that he can view his child in the yard from his kitchen window. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the petitioner accessed his rear yard through the garage because 
the intent of the ordinance is to have an open space in the front.  He stated a fence right 
along the property line tends to be a wall.  He said if you would move the fence back to 
the side garage door it would leave an open space to Alexander and Paris.  He also 
recommended to move the fence 5’ off the sidewalk to allow for the grass to be 
maintained.   
 
The petitioner stated that his wife is the one who wants the fence and that she was 
planning on being at the meeting.  He said she would be here in 5-10 minutes. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if anyone objected to postponing this item until the end of the 
meeting to allow Ms. Santa to appear.  There were no objections.  Mr. Dziurman 
postponed the item until the end of the meeting. 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  BARRY CASTILLOUX, 90 CHOPIN, for relief of 
the 2003 Michigan Residential Code to finish a basement. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the petitioner is requesting relief of the 2003 Michigan Residential 
Code to alter the basement of the existing home to create two bedrooms with a 6’-6” 
finished ceiling height.  The plans also show an existing unfinished area of the 
basement that will be used as an access corridor to the bedrooms.  This unfinished area 
has a 6’-7” ceiling height and includes a dropped I-beam and ductwork with a 6’-1” 
ceiling height.  The 2003 Michigan Residential Code, section R 305 requires a 7’  
minimum ceiling height in habitable area including corridors and 6’-6” clear height under 
dropped beams and ducts. 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                       SEPTEMBER 6, 2006 

 
ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Castilloux was present.  Mr. Dziurman asked about an emergency window for this 
location.  The petitioner stated there would be two, one in each bedroom.  He also 
stated that he needed the bedrooms because his wife operates a Daycare out of the 
home.  He said that currently his two children (10 year old son and 8 year old daughter) 
share a bedroom because the other bedroom is being used as a play area for the 
children his wife takes care of.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if he was going to finish the ceiling.  The petitioner stated he was 
going to put in acoustical tiles.  He currently has 6’-7” of floor to ceiling.  Installing the 
material he is using will lower the height to 6’-6”.  He stated the home was built between 
the years of 1936 to 1939.  He said he would be using glow in the dark tape adhesive 
on the beams and duct so no one would hit their head.  Also, he stated he would use 
caution tape in areas where the glow in the dark material would not work unless it was 
dark.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked about putting in emergency lighting for when power fails.  The 
petitioner agreed to do anything that would make the area safe for his children. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what the quality of the area was if the space was to be used as 
bedrooms.  Is the area dry and free of any leaks or dampness?  He also he asked if the 
area leading to the bedrooms would remain clear of any storage?   
 
The petitioner stated the area would remain clean because he uses his garage as a 
storage area.  He presented photos showing the bedroom that is currently used as a 
play area.  The second photo was the one bedroom used by his son and daughter.  He 
needs to have the living area and two bedrooms for the daycare business.  He currently 
has 6 children but the State has licensed his home for 12 children.  The petitioner stated 
he would need all of the first floor living space to accommodate 12 children. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that if it were a requirement to have 35 square feet per child then 
for 6 children you would only need 210 square feet of living space. The petitioner stated 
he still wanted to finish the basement. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what material was he going to use.  The petitioner stated he is using 
2 X 4 with ½” drywall. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if he was going to use hard wire smoke detectors that were 
interconnected.  The petitioner stated he had already spoken to the Electrical Inspector, 
Joe VanSumer about the possibility of hard wiring the smoke detectors. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                       SEPTEMBER 6, 2006 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Barry Castilloux, 90 Chopin relief of the 2003 Michigan Residential 
Code to alter the existing home to create two bedrooms in the basement with 6’-6” 
finished ceiling height and the unfinished area that includes a dropped I-beam and 
ductwork with 6’-1” ceiling height. 
 

• Smoke detectors must be installed with the current building code and to 
be hardwired and interconnected. 

• Emergency lighting must be installed so that it doesn’t project out where 
someone would get injured. 

 
Mr. Richnak stated he wanted to amend the motion to include the area coming off duct 
work would be at a 45 degree angle instead of a 90 degree angle.   
 
Mr. Stimac stated that this basement finish is not quite like ones that were previously 
heard by the board in that they are not proposing to enclose the existing ductwork and 
beam.  He wanted to be sure that the Board was not mandating that they be enclosed 
possibly further reducing the clear height. 
 
The petitioner did agree to add an angled the portion adjacent to the beam to a 45-
degree angle. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
(As Amended) MOVED, to grant Barry Castilloux, 90 Chopin relief of the 2003 Michigan 
Residential Code to alter the existing home to create two bedrooms in the basement 
with 6’-6” finished ceiling height and the unfinished area that includes a dropped I-beam 
and ductwork with 6’-1” ceiling height. 
 

• Smoke detectors must be installed with the current building code and to 
be hardwired and interconnected. 

• Emergency lighting must be installed so that it doesn’t project out where 
someone would get injured. 

• Provide angle portion below the beam to be 45 degrees. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 (continued) –  
 
Mrs. Santa arrived at the meeting and Mr. Dziurman explained to her that before her 
arrival, her husband stated why they were requesting the variance for the fence.  Mrs. 
Santa stated they need the fence higher than 30” for their son’s safety.   

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                       SEPTEMBER 6, 2006 

ITEM #2 (continued) –  
 
Mr. Santa stated that an additional 6” in height should not be a problem. 
 
Mr. Kessler wanted to know if the petitioner would consider moving the fence back up to 
the side garage door so there would not be an open space in the fence, which would 
then allow installing the fence all the way to the house. 
 
The petitioners stated they wanted to leave the opening in the fence for parking a 
vehicle. 
 
The Chairman opened the public hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There were 3 written responses in the file. Two approved of the installation of the fence 
and one stated that the drivers on Alexander approaching Paris would have limited 
visibility for seeing small children or small vehicles including bicycles. 
  
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. Santa, 2245 Alexander relief of Chapter 83 to install a 
picket fence 36” to 42” high in the front setback adjacent to the property line along Paris. 
 

• Erect fence along Alexander to 1’ east of the garage service door. 
• Erect fence 4’ off of the sidewalk on the private property. 
 

Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:10 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
              

Marlene Struckman, Acting -Recording 
Secretary 

 5



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Sept. 7, 2006 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, Sept. 
7 2006 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at  
1:05 PM. 
 
Present: Bud Black, Member David Ogg, Member 
 Frank Shier, Member Mary Sarossy, Member 
 JoAnn Thompson, Member Pauline Noce, Member 
 Merrill Dixon, Member James Berar, Member  
 Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent: Jo Rhoads, Member, excused     
   
Visitors:  Carol Anderson, Peggy Hammond, Susan Werpetinski, Dorothy Pietron, Carlene 

Geier, Wes Myers, Harold Stephenson, Mildred Myers, Ed Forst, Gloria 
Weisgerber, Bill Weisgerber, Steven Banch  

   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2006-9-001 
Moved by JoAnn Thompson  
Seconded by David Ogg  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of June 1, 2006 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 8       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Carol Anderson reported that the project was rebid, and two 
bids were received.    One will be recommended for approval at the Sept. 18 City Council 
meeting and it is expected that the courts will be built this fall.  James Berar commented that it 
should be stressed that the courts are for all ages.  JoAnn Thompson encouraged committee 
members to attend the council meeting to show their support. 
 
Golf Leagues:  Carla reported that after several meetings, an agreement was reached with 
the golf league officers.   It was determined that league members will not have to pay for a 
minimum number of golfers.   Non-resident golfers will pay the non-resident rate, and there will 
be a $5 per person administrative fee.  Funds will be distributed to the league officers as 
before, but a detailed report of financing will be provided.     
  
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carol Anderson reported that no one bid on the 
new contract for the Community Center, and there was only one bid for the golf course.   A 
revised RFP is going out next week for this contract that expires in May.  A discussion was 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Sept. 7, 2006 

2 

held regarding the future of the senior lunch program and reasons why attendance might be 
falling.  Mary Sarossy volunteered to preliminary investigation of options for the lunch program. 
 
 
New Business 
 
Street Signs:  James Berar stated that the street signs in Troy are hard to read and the 
lettering on any new signs should be bigger.  JoAnn Thompson commented that a different 
color might also be easier to read. 
 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board: Merrill Dixon reported that the Park Board did not meet during the summer.  
Sylvan Glen is done and a ribbon cutting ceremony was held.  
 
Medi-Go:  No report  
 
Senior Program:  Carla handed out a copy of the senior program annual report for the fiscal 
year that ended June 30.  She noted that the number of seniors receiving the newsletter via 
email is up 36% to 375.  Attendance at the lunch program continues to decline - down 31% 
from last year.   We are now serving an average of 35 meals per day.  The sale of passes for 
single exercise classes is up 105% to 451 this year.  Creative Endeavors showed a 19% 
increase in sales.  There were 276 pieces of hospital equipment loaned out last year, up from 
180 last year.  The service is much appreciated.  
 
JoAnn Thompson asked if the pool staff could refrain from vacuuming the deck during their 
class as it makes it hard to hear the instructor.   Carla will pass this request on to the pool staff.     
 
OLHSA:  No report.  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  No report  
 
Suggestion Box:  Exercise instructor Marilyn McCauly has resigned, and here was one 
suggestion that Therese, who is subbing for Marilyn this summer, be hired to take her place.  
Carla reported that Therese was approached about this, but she has taken a full time job and 
will not be available.  Eileen, a new instructor, has agreed to teach the class.  She conducted 
the class yesterday and was well received.  
 
 
Comments:   
 
David Ogg and other committee members would like the meetings moved back to room 302.   
Carla will take care of this. 
 
James Berar circulated an article about volunteers building a park in Birmingham. 
 
JoAnn Thompson reported that the Elf Shelf is looking for a new site since Troy High has 
become so expensive.    



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Sept. 7, 2006 

3 

 
David Ogg asked about Troy Daze, and Carla reported on the senior event and referred him to 
the senior newsletter for details. 
 
Mary Sarossy commented that she is glad to have the opportunity to be of service as a 
member of this committee. 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 3 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair               
 
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Vice 
Chair Schultz at 7:32 p.m. on September 12, 2006, in the Council Chambers of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Mary Kerwin 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat (arrived 8:30 p.m.) 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-141 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as presented. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat (arrived 8:30 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
3. MINUTES 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-09-142 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the August 22, 2006 Special/Study meeting minutes as 
published. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat (arrived 8:30 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 714) – Proposed Senior Housing 
Development, North of Long Lake, East side of I-75, Section 9 – From R-1B (One 
Family Residential) to R-EC (Residential Elder Care) District 
 
Mr. Miller announced a request from the petitioner to postpone the matter for 90 
days was received by the Planning Department on September 7.  Mr. Miller 
reported a valid protest petition relating to the rezoning request was submitted to 
the Planning Department, and that copies were distributed to the Planning 
Commission.  He indicated it is at the discretion of the Planning Commission to 
postpone the matter, or act upon the rezoning request.   
 
[A person from the audience handed what appeared to be a traditional petition to 
Mr. Miller.  Vice Chair Schultz said the item would be noted and filed.]   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
P. J. Cumming of 5375 Daniels, Troy, was present.  Ms. Cumming spoke in 
opposition to the proposed rezoning request and the postponement of the item.  Ms. 
Cumming also addressed the proposed site plan.   
 
Charles Jackson of 405 W. Square Lake Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Jackson 
spoke in opposition to the proposed rezoning request, and provided an additional 
sheet of signatures to the protest petition.  He addressed traffic concerns, safety of 
school children, and the number of senior developments in the City.  Mr. Jackson 
thinks it might be intentional on the part of the petitioner to request postponements, 
so residents would eventually forget about the proposed development.   
 
Vice Chair Schultz indicated a postponement allows a petitioner additional time to 
work on outstanding items related to the proposal, noting in this case the petitioner 
might be attempting to gain access to a major thoroughfare. 
 
Mr. Littman asked if the petitioner met with the residents. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Jackson replied that, to his knowledge, there has been no meeting with 
residents.   
 
Rob Shouhayib of Choice Development, 755 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, was 
present.  Mr. Shouhayib respectfully requested a postponement to allow additional 
time to address the concerns of the residents and details of the plan.  He indicated 
a meeting with residents on Daniels was held, and they would be happy to meet 
with any other residents.  Mr. Shouhayib said a status report could most likely be 
provided within the next couple of weeks. 
 
Mr. Vleck asked the petitioner if they are attempting to get direct access to a major 
thoroughfare. 
 
Mr. Shouhayib replied that access to a major thoroughfare is an option under 
serious consideration.  
 
Mr. Vleck said he would not be in favor of another postponement.  Mr. Vleck said a 
status report on the proposed development prior to tonight’s meeting would have 
been appreciated, and noted a lot of people are affected by the proposed 
development.   
 
Mr. Khan said it would be appreciated if a request to postpone were received by the 
Planning Department to allow enough time to let residents know prior to the 
scheduled public hearing.   
 
Mr. Waller indicated he would be in favor of honoring the petitioner’s request to 
postpone.  He has confidence in the petitioner’s ability to produce good quality 
projects, based on their history of development in the City.  
 
John Major of 5215 Daniels, Troy, was present.  Mr. Major spoke in opposition of 
the proposed rezoning request and postponement.  He confirmed the petitioner met 
with residents, but he did not believe all residents who would be affected were 
invited to the meeting.  Mr. Major said the petitioner shows disregard for the 
residents as relates to the lack of information and notice of intention to postpone.   
 
Vince Pangle of 5235 Wright, Troy, was present.  Mr. Pangle spoke in opposition to 
the proposed rezoning request.  He addressed the Zoning Ordinance standards for 
rezoning requests and the petitioner’s presentation to request a postponement.   
 
Millie Francuck of 5661 Wright, Troy, was present.  Ms. Francuck spoke in 
opposition of the proposed rezoning request.  She addressed the safety of school 
children and property contamination.  Ms. Francuck suggested taking the matter to 
the residents as an advisory question. 
 
Brooke Hertzberg of 233 McKinley Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Hertzberg spoke 
in opposition of the proposed rezoning request.  She addressed the negative impact 
the proposed use would have on the residential neighborhood.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Peter Horan of 5520 Wright, Troy, was present.  Mr. Horan spoke in opposition of 
the proposed rezoning request.  He suggested that a vote of the audience be taken 
to determine how many residents are for or against the rezoning request.   
 
Ms. Vleck addressed the parliamentary procedure followed by the Planning 
Commission. 
 
It was the recommendation of Ms. Lancaster that the Planning Commission not 
conduct a show of hands, for or against, the proposed rezoning request, and 
provided a brief explanation of the basis of her recommendation.   
 
Richard Hughes of 1321 Roger Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Hughes addressed 
the advisory vote option, and potential access to the subject property via a service 
drive along Interstate 75.   
 
Mr. Wright briefly addressed a service drive along Interstate 75. 
 
Gloria DePoorter of 100 Stalwart, Troy, was present.  Ms. DePoorter spoke in 
opposition of the proposed rezoning request.  She asked what evidence the City 
needs to prove the proposed use would not work in the neighborhood.  Ms. 
DePoorter submitted two photographs of parked cars on a residential street within 
the proposed development.   
 
Mr. Miller provided an explanation of the decision-making role of the Planning 
Commission.  
 
Mr. Littman addressed the advisory role of the Planning Commission to City 
Council.  Mr. Littman said he would be in favor of denying the rezoning request, and 
noted he voted against postponement of the item previously.  He said there is 
nothing the petitioner can do to make the proposed development fit the Zoning 
Ordinance or Master Plan.     
 
Ms. Kerwin said she would support denial of the rezoning request because it does 
not warrant rezoning. 
 
Mr. Wright said he would support denial of the rezoning request also, indicating the 
proposed development did not make sense to him since the initial presentation.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-143 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to R-EC rezoning request, located on the north side of Long 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Lake, east side of I-75, within Section 9, being approximately 8.6 acres in size, be 
denied, for the following reasons: 
 
 The application does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan  
 The application does not meet the Location Standards of Section 19.40.00.   

 
Yes: Kerwin, Khan, Littman, Vleck, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts, Schultz, Waller 
Absent: Strat (arrived 8:30 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said the denial does not stop the petitioner from going forward with 
the proposed development; the petitioner will simply submit another application.   
 
Mr. Waller agreed with Ms. Drake-Batts’ comments.  He thinks it is reasonable to 
give the petitioner another opportunity to resolve the major issues of the proposed 
development.   
 
Vice Chair Schultz agreed with comments made by Ms. Drake-Batts and Mr. Waller.   
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief explanation of the administrative procedure for Planning 
Commission recommendations to City Council, and informed residents to contact 
the Planning Department for further information.  

 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV 148-C) – Daley Street, 
South of Big Beaver, East of Rochester Road, abutting Lots 28 and 33 of 
Supervisor’s Plat No. 11 Subdivision, Section 26 – Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District (the abutting parcels) 
 
Mr. Miller identified handouts relating to the street vacation request that were 
distributed to members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Miller 
reported the Planning Department received a written request to postpone the item 
to the October Regular meeting from Ken Demark.  He noted Mr. Demark’s 
relationship to the petitioner is unknown.   
 
Mr. Miller said a review of the street vacation request determined the proposed 
vacation could negatively impact access to the property for large trucks backing 
onto the property to make pick-ups or deliveries.  Mr. Miller asked for a clear 
understanding of the petitioner’s need for the proposed street vacation.   
 
Mr. Waller asked if the Planning Director or Assistant City Attorney had any advice 
with respect to the lawsuit filed on the street vacation request.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Ms. Lancaster said the City is convinced the subject street is a public road, and the 
lawsuit would have no bearing on the Planning Commission’s determination of the 
matter.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Paul Asker of Asker, Clos & Perlmuter, 35551 Ford Road, Westland, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Asker addressed his September 11, 2006 
correspondence [copy provided to the Planning Commission prior to the beginning 
of tonight’s meeting] and provided a detailed synopsis of the pending litigation 
relating to the proposed street vacation.  He stated the vacation would allow Behr 
America to provide additional parking.  He indicated that Daley would continue to be 
a driveway in which truck traffic could turn around.  Mr. Asker said Behr America 
does not intend to fence or gate the vacated street.   
 
[Mr. Strat arrived at 8:30 p.m.] 
 
Mr. Miller recommended a cross access easement that would essentially give 
permission to others to trespass Behr property.   
 
Mr. Asker said he would discuss the matter of cross access easement with his 
client.   
 
Robert Easterly of 189 E. Big Beaver, Troy, was present.  Mr. Easterly represents 
Protofab Corp. located at 2835 Daley.  He clarified that Ken Demark, who requested 
a postponement of the item, is one of the principals of Photofab Corp.  Mr. Easterly 
addressed his correspondence dated July 6, 2006 and September 11, 2006, copies 
of which were distributed to the Planning Commission prior to the beginning of 
tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Easterly provided a detailed synopsis of the pending lawsuit 
and detailed the direct and negative affect the proposed street vacation would have 
on his client’s business.   
 
There was general discussion on parcel ownership, underground utilities, 
trespassing concerns, discrepancies in the legal description, City Management’s 
recommendation for denial, and justification of postponing the matter.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-144 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone this matter to the October 2006 Regular meeting to allow 
petitioners to start court proceedings and for petitioners to look at the possibility of 
providing a turnaround easement.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Vleck stated he would vote affirmatively on the motion.  He would like the 
opportunity to review the material that was distributed to the members prior to the 
beginning of the meeting.   
 
Yes: Kerwin, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller, Wright  
No: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she did not need 30 days to make a decision on the matter.   
 

___________ 
 
Vice Chair Schultz requested a recess at 9:11 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:23 p.m. 

___________ 
 

[Chair Strat resided.] 
 
7. SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 117-C) – Proposed Private School, Proposed St. 

Mark Christian Academy at St. Mark Coptic Orthodox Church, West side of 
Livernois, South of Kirk Lane (3603 Livernois), Section 21 – R-1B 
 
Mr. Miller reported the petitioner requested in a written communication dated 
September 11, 2006, to postpone the matter to the October 2006 Regular meeting.   
 
The petitioner was not present.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-145 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the matter to the December 2006 Regular meeting. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed traffic congestion at this location and expressed concerns 
with safety.  She asked if City Management could study the site with respect to 
traffic and potential implications in the interim of another postponement.   
 
Mr. Miller said he would ask the City’s Traffic Engineer to conduct a minor traffic 
study at this location.  He will keep the members advised of the findings.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Vote on the motion on the floor. 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

8. REZONING REQUEST (Z 719) – Proposed Troy Medical Office, West side of 
Livernois, North of Big Beaver, Section 21 – From R-1B (One Family Residential) to 
O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Mr. Miller said the petitioner requested a postponement to the November 2006 
Regular meeting to pursue the option of a conditional rezoning.  Mr. Miller said no 
action is necessary.   
 
Ms. Lancaster recommended entertaining a motion to postpone the item so the 
record would be clear. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the petitioner indicated during conversations with the Planning 
Department that he might request a review of the item at a study session.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-146 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the item until the November 2006 Regular meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

9. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 932) – Proposed Stonewood Pangborn Industrial Building 
Addition, Southeast Corner of Coolidge and Industrial Row (2963 Industrial Row), 
Section 32, M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
site plan as submitted contingent upon providing the required 9.5 feet of width for all 
the parking spaces.   
 
The petitioner, Benny Spielmann of 13211 Northend Avenue, Oak Park, was 
present.  Mr. Spielmann indicated Mr. Pangborn, part owner of Stonewood 
Pangborn, and the project architect were also present.  He addressed the site plan 
revisions that were made in consideration of Planning Commission comments from 
the August Regular meeting.  Mr. Spielmann indicated he had no problem 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

eliminating one parking space, and that would allow the necessary space to widen 
all the parking spaces to the required 9.5-foot width.   
 
Alternate options discussed related to obtaining a variance from the Board of 
Appeals (BZA) for a reduction in parking, or a reduction in width of the total parking 
spaces.   
 
Members Vleck and Littman indicated their support of the proposed development by 
eliminating one parking space.   
 
Mr. Miller briefly addressed handicapped parking.  
 
Chair Strat said the proposed site plan is cramped, but he is supportive of new 
development coming into the City.  
 
Mr. Spielmann provided copies of the revised site plan, signed and sealed by his 
architect, which shows the elimination of one parking space and the reconfiguration 
of 9.5 foot-wide parking spaces.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-147 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
Stonewood Pangborn Industrial Building Addition, located on the southeast corner 
of Coolidge and Industrial Row, located in Section 32, on approximately 0.92 
acres, within the M-1 zoning district, is hereby granted, and that the Planning 
Commission allows a reduction of one parking place along the north edge of the 
building from seven (7) parking spaces to six (6) 9.5 foot wide parking spaces, 
pursuant to Section 40.20.12, with the following condition.   
 
1. That the eliminated parking space is turned into a greenbelt. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUESTS 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 337) – Existing Clark Station, 
Southwest corner of Rochester Road and South Blvd. (6951 Rochester Road), 
Section 3, Zoned H-S (Highway Service) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Management to approve the special use request and site plan as submitted with 
conditions.  City Management recommends deleting the north drive on Rochester 
Road, providing protection for the new canopy supports or eliminating them, and 
providing a 30-inch screen wall in lieu of the 10-foot wide greenbelt along those 
portions of South Boulevard and Rochester Road where a 10-foot greenbelt is not 
provided.  Mr. Savidant reviewed Section 39.70.05, as relates to the material of 
screen wall, and Section 23.30.02 (A), as relates to curb cuts for ingress and egress 
to service stations.   
 
William Quinlan of Quinlan Associates, 31325 Harper Avenue, St. Clair Shores, was 
present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Quinlan asked for approval of the site plan 
as submitted.  He indicated the proposed second curb cut on Rochester Road 
would better facilitate interior traffic and not impede right-turning traffic from South 
Boulevard to Rochester Road.  Mr. Quinlan said the petitioner has concerns that the 
required screen wall would hinder maneuverability.   
 
There was discussion on alternate layouts, preservation of the existing islands, fill 
locations for underground tanks, loss of trees, and curb cuts as relates to 
accessibility and maneuverability.   
 
No one present indicated they wished to speak on this application. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-148 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 23.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the existing 
Clark Station, located at the southwest corner of Rochester Road and South Blvd., 
located in Section 3, within the H-S zoning district, are hereby granted, subject to 
the following conditions: 
 
1. Delete the north drive on Rochester Road. 
2. Provide protection for the new canopy supports, or eliminate those supports. 
3. Provide a 30-inch screen wall in lieu of the ten-foot wide greenbelt along 

those portions of South Boulevard and Rochester Road where a 10-foot 
greenbelt is not provided. 

 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 338) – Proposed Auto 
Detailing and Repair Facility, East side of Souter, South of Maple Road (1402 
Souter), Section 34, Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant reported the petitioner submitted a request in writing, dated September 5, 
2006, to postpone the item to the October Regular meeting. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-149 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the subject item be postponed to the October 10, 2006 Regular 
meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
12. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 339) – Proposed Health Club, 

South side of Big Beaver, West of Rochester Road (former Home Expo Bldg.), 
Section 27, Zoned B-2 (Community Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the special use request as submitted.   
 
There was discussion on the site plan comments provided by the City’s Landscape 
Analyst.  It was assumed that the intent of the comments is that any missing, dying 
or dead landscape material would be replaced with new landscape material.   
 
David Huntor of Professional Engineers Associates, 2430 Rochester Court, Troy, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Huntor said Monte Rosenberger of 
DeBartolo Development was present also.  He indicated the petitioner is purchasing 
the former Home Depot parcel that is approximately 9 acres, and would be 
responsible for the landscaping within that parcel.  Mr. Huntor said DeBartolo 
Development is under contract to purchase the entire building and is looking at 
proposed retail uses for the remainder of the building.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

Mr. Schultz asked if the subject parcel would be included if the Planning 
Commission specified in the Special Use Approval that landscaping must be 
brought up to the standards of the originally approved site plan. 
 
Mr. Savidant said it would.   
 
Mr. Littman asked if there would be enough parking on site for a health club.   
 
Mr. Savidant replied that the applicant meets all parking requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked how the percentage of required landscaping for the subject parcel 
would relate to the required landscaping for the entire site.   
 
Mr. Savidant stated the petitioner is seeking only a special use approval, and no site 
improvements are planned at this time.   
 
Mr. Miller said the site is considered as one development at this time.  He indicated 
the Assessing Department would require the petitioner to meet all Zoning Ordinance 
requirements prior to granting a request to split the lot.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-150 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval, pursuant to Section 21.30.03 of the 
Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Health Club, located on the south 
side of Big Beaver, west of Rochester Road, located in Section 27, within the B-2 
zoning district, is hereby granted.  
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

13. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 271-B) – Amendment of 
Special Use Approval, Existing Rainbow Rascals Child Development Center, West 
side of Crooks, South of Investment Drive (4533 Crooks), Section 17, Zoned R-1B 
(One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report.  It is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the amendment of the Special 
Use Approval to permit the overnight parking of two commercial vehicles on the 
property, subject to conditions.  City Management recommends limiting the 
overnight parking to two vehicles with a maximum capacity of 15 passengers and 
parking the vehicles on the two most northeastern parking spaces.  Photographs of 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

two vehicles the petitioner would like to use were distributed to the members prior to 
the beginning of tonight’s meeting.     
 
The petitioner, Patrick Fenton, owner and operator of Rainbow Development, 17500 
W. Eleven Mile Road, Lathrup Village, was present.  Mr. Fenton said the Troy 
facility currently does not have any vehicles parked on site.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
John Vidosh of 1077 Whisper Way Ct., Troy, was present.  Mr. Vidosh spoke in 
opposition of the request.  Mr. Vidosh was present at the meeting when Rainbow 
Rascals received their Special Use Approval and recalls the two conditions to the 
approval.  He stated the petitioner has violated those conditions and have not been 
good neighbors, as relates to a second dumpster and parked bus.  Mr. Vidosh 
addressed the location of parked vehicles should tonight’s request be granted.  He 
also expressed distaste for the windmills placed on the lawn by the children and the 
length of time the windmills have remained.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Fenton provided explanations for the violations cited by Mr. Vidosh, and 
indicated they were appropriately handled.   
 
Mr. Wright said the reason Planning Commission did not allow overnight parking of 
commercial vehicles when a Special Use Approval was granted was because the 
child development center is situated in the R-1B residential zoning district.   
 
Chair Strat agreed with the resident’s comments on the windmills at this site.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-151 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That conditions of Special Use Approval, pursuant to Section 10.30.03 
of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the existing Rainbow Rascals Child 
Development Center, located on the west side of Crooks Road, south of Investment 
Drive, located in Section 17, within the R-1B zoning district, are hereby amended to 
permit the overnight parking of two commercial vehicles on the property, subject to 
the following conditions: 
 
1. There shall be a maximum of two vehicles with a maximum capacity of 15 

passengers each parked on the parcel overnight.  These vehicles shall be 
parked on the two most northeastern parking spaces on the parcel. 

 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Vleck, Waller 
No: Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

Mr. Wright voted no because the center is located in a residential zoning district.  
 
Chair Strat concurred.   

 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

14. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 226) – 
Articles 04.00.00 and 24.00.00 – Medical Equipment Sales and Service in the O-1 
(Low Rise Office) District 
 
Mr. Miller briefly reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating 
to medical equipment sales and service in the O-1 district.  He indicated that City 
Management concurs with the direction of the Planning Commission.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
A short discussion followed. 
• Special use approval versus permit by right. 
• Domino affect to retail uses. 
• Intensity of proposed use. 
• Impact on office district. 
• Intent of City Council direction. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-152 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles IV and XXIV, pertaining to revisions to permit Medical 
Equipment Sales and Service in the O-1 (Low Rise Office) District, as printed on the 
proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, be approved. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, Khan, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts, Littman, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Members Drake-Batts, Littman, Schultz and Vleck indicated their preference to 
allow medical equipment sales and service by special use approval.   
 
There was a brief discussion on existing medical uses in the O-1 zoning district.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 
15. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 883-C) – Amendment to Consent Judgment – Heartland 

Health Care Skilled Nursing Facility, South side of South Blvd., East of Livernois, 
Section 3 – Consent Judgment 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the request to amend the Consent Judgment by providing an 
additional 16 parking spaces on site.  It is the recommendation of City Management 
to approve the revised site plan as submitted.  Mr. Miller indicated the revisions 
would not affect compliance with any Zoning Ordinance provisions.  It was noted 
that the Planning Department report incorrectly states the parking spaces would be 
incorporated on the southwest side of the building; it should read the southeast 
side.   
 
The petitioner was present in the audience.   
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-153 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council that 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to a proposed Amendment to Consent 
Judgment, for a revised site plan, located on the south side of South Boulevard and 
East of Livernois Road within Section 3, within the O-1 zoning district, be approved. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

16. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 909) – Landowner – Proposed Amendment to Consent 
Agreement – Starbucks Restaurant, Northwest corner of Big Beaver Road and 
Crooks Road, Section 20 – H-S (Consent Judgment) 
 
Mr. Miller reported a request to postpone the item to the October 2006 Regular 
meeting was received today from Joseph M. Rogowski, Berry Reynolds & 
Rogowski, PC, on behalf of the petitioner.  It was noted the petitioner requested a 
postponement from the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) for requested variances 
relating to the proposed development.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

Mr. Miller provided a history of the item.  He indicated that City Management was 
not provided enough time to consider the application and make a recommendation, 
but identified some concerns after a cursory review of the site plan.   
 
Ms. Lancaster explained the administrative process for a Consent Agreement 
amendment.  She indicated the Planning Commission would review the site plan 
before a presentation of the complete package to the City Council.  The request to 
amend the Consent Agreement and site plan approval would be considered and 
determined by the City Council.   
 
There was discussion on the relationship of the proposed use with implementation 
of the Big Beaver Corridor plan.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-154 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone this item to the October 2006 Regular meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

17. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 

 
The members and City Management overwhelmingly welcomed back Mr. Wright! 
 
Mr. Wright said it was good to be back! 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts addressed traffic congestion on the northwest corner of Big Beaver and 
Crooks, near the retail center [Einstein Bagels].  She asked if a “no left turn” sign on to 
Crooks could be erected.   
 
Mr. Miller said he would bring it to the attention of the City’s Traffic Engineer.   
 
Mr. Schultz, former member of the City’s Traffic Committee, said placement of directional 
signs is based on the number of accidents.   
 
Mr. Waller addressed the landscaping on Crooks and Big Beaver, in front of Kelly 
Services.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

Ms. Kerwin announced the dates/times for the grand opening/open house/ribbon cutting of 
the new Boys and Girls Club.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said it was good to see everybody! 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed agenda items on the next study session meeting.  He reminded 
members that a venue must be determined for the November 7, 2006 Special/Study 
meeting.   
 
Mr. Vleck commented on the number of postponements at tonight’s meeting, and the 
length of time it took to conduct the meeting.   
 
Mr. Littman reminded members of the upcoming Kresge Foundation tour. 
 
Chair Strat addressed the progress made on streamlining the PUD process.   
 
 
 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 11:20 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Final\09-12-06 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 26, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:34 p.m. on September 26, 2006 in the Council Board Room of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Fazal Khan 
Mary Kerwin Mark J. Vleck 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat  
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Rod Arroyo, Birchler Arroyo Associates, Inc. 
Randy Metz, Grissim Metz Andreise Associates 
Davis Peterhans, C3 Community Core Creators 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-155 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Khan and Vleck are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-156 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as presented.  
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 26, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-157 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the September 12, 2006 Regular meeting minutes as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING (BZA) APPEALS REPORT 
 
Mr. Wright reported on the September 19, 2006 Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) 
meeting.   
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the September 20, 2006 Downtown Development Authority 
(DDA) meeting. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller presented the Planning and Zoning report. 
 
 

8. BIG BEAVER CORRIDOR STUDY PRESENTATION 
 
Rod Arroyo of Birchler Arroyo Associates led discussion of the Big Beaver Corridor 
Study, beginning with the key concepts listed on Page 38. 
 
General discussion of the document followed.  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 26, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 9:00 p.m. 
 
[Ms. Drake Batts left at 9:00 p.m. due to illness.] 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:10 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 
Discussion on the Big Beaver Corridor Study continued. 
 
Richard Carlisle, Planning Consultant, Carlisle & Wortman Associates, presented 
short-term implementation items identified in the Big Beaver Corridor Study. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-158 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
WHEREAS, The Downtown Development Authority (DDA) commissioned a study 
focused on the continued vitality of the Big Beaver Corridor as a regional destination 
point and a world class boulevard; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has a vested interest in continued development and 
increasing the quality of life and other opportunities for our community; and 
 
WHEREAS, The key concepts of the document were adopted by both the 
Downtown Development Authority and City Council; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the key concepts included in the Big 
Beaver Corridor Study are hereby supported by the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts (left at 9:00 p.m.), Khan, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
The Planning Commission thanked the project team for their hard work and 
excellent document. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 26, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 225) – Article XXXV - 
Amendments to Planned Unit Development Provisions 
 
Mr. Miller updated the Planning Commission on the PUD provisions.  The PUD 
approval process is proposed to be modified so that projects can receive conceptual 
approval without the petitioner having to invest significant time and money into the 
project. 
 
A flow chart that summarizes the proposed PUD approval process was discussed. 
 
Mr. Miller indicated that a draft text amendment would be prepared and presented 
to the Planning Commission in the near future. 
 
 

10. VENUE FOR NOVEMBER 7, 2006 SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING AND 
ESTABLISHMENT OF 2007 MEETING SCHEDULE 
 
The Planning Commission discussed this item and the conflict with the General 
Election.  They agreed to hold the November 7, 2006 meeting at the Police and Fire 
Training Center. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-159 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
WHEREAS, There is a Planning Commission Special/Study meeting scheduled for 
November 7, 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, There will be no meeting rooms available in Troy City Hall on 
November 7, 2006 because of the General Election;    
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Planning Commission shall hold its 
Special/Study meeting on November 7, 2006, at the Police and Fire Training 
Center, located at 4850 John R, Troy, MI. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts (left at 9:00 p.m.), Khan, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-160 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves the City Planning 
Commission calendar for 2007 as presented, with the exception that the following 
dates shall be deleted: January 2, 2007, July 3, 2007, and September 4, 2007, 
because of conflicts with national holidays. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 26, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts (left at 9:00 p.m.), Khan, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 

11. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 212-B) – Articles 25.00.00, 
26.00.00, 27.00.00 – Improving design and strengthening the relationship of 
freestanding restaurants, day care centers and banks with the abutting streets in the 
R-C, O-M, and O-S-C Zoning Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant presented this item.  It was agreed that Mr. Waller would assist the 
Planning Department in preparing provisions that require more sustainable design 
elements, including definitions of these elements.   
 
 

12. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 

 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-161 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Drake-Batts is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Mr. Schultz discussed the City of Palm Desert, California, and their requirements that 
developers contribute to a fund for public art. 
 
Mr. Waller indicated that the City of Loveland, Colorado, has a similar program.  
 
Ms. Kerwin indicated that she believes the public would support landscaping and public 
art.  She also announced dates and times for the Grand Opening of the Boys and Girls 
Club of Troy. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 26, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Mr. Miller talked about the upcoming Comprehensive Plan process. 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Draft\09-26-06 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Draft October 2, 2006 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held Monday, October 2, 2006, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 
5:16 P.M. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  Timothy Dewan 
ALSO PRESENT: Deputy City Clerk Barbara Holmes 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of July 7, 2006  
 
Resolution #EC-2006-10-10 
Motion by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Friday, July 7, 2006, are APPROVED as submitted. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 

Approval of Election Inspector Assignments for the November 7, 2006 General 
Election 
 
Resolution #EC-2006-10-11 
Motion by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 
RESOLVED, That Election Inspectors be appointed for the Tuesday, November 7, 2006 
Election, as presented by the City Clerk, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:19 P.M. 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        Oct. 5, 2006 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, Oct. 5 
2006 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at  
1:05 PM. 
 
Present: Bud Black, Member David Ogg, Member   
 Frank Shier, Member Mary Sarossy, Member 
 Pauline Noce, Member James Berar, Member  
 Jo Rhoads, Member, excused  Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent: JoAnn Thompson, Member excused   
 Merrill Dixon, Member excused     
   
Visitors:  Steve Haveraneck, Paula Fleming, Wade Fleming 
 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2006-10-001 
Moved by Pauline Noce  
Seconded by Mary Sarossy  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Sept. 5, 2006 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 7       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Steve Haveraneck from Emerald Food Service answered questions and provided information 
about the senior lunch program. 
 
Paula Fleming discussed the Terrace Café at Athens High School and announced that 
Homecoming for both high schools is this Friday. 
 
Wade Fleming announced that a satisfactory agreement was reached with the senior golf 
leagues and that he did not want to see them move to another city. 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Carla reported that the contract was approved and that work 
will start any day now as soon as weather permits. 
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla reported that new bids were due last 
Friday and Emerald Food Service was the only company to bid the food service RFP.   The bid 
is being reviewed and council will be asked for permission to negotiate a contract. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01n



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        Oct. 5, 2006 

2 

 
Mary Sarossy presented a report detailing her discussion with Joel Gottsacker at the Area 
Agency on Aging about the senior lunch program. 
 
 
New Business 
 
Home Repair Program:  Carla reported that the Big Beaver United Methodist Church has 
been doing repairs for seniors for several months.  The Community Foundation of Troy wants 
to fund this program.   Senior volunteers are needed on the steering committee.  Interested 
persons should contact Carla.  Positions include: 
 Intake Coordinator  
 Delivery of Service – Chairperson 
 Delivery of service - Electrical 
 Delivery of service - Plumbing 
 Delivery of service  - Handyman 
 Delivery of service  - Other 
 Volunteer recruitment and recognition  
 Resource procurement  and fundraising 
 Bookkeeping – finances  
 Marketing/client recruitment  
 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board: No report  
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that there is a need for Saturday service and for seniors to get 
to church activities. 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that we now have a captioned telephone that was donated 
by the manufacturer to demonstrate to seniors.  Seniors are invited to set up an appointment to 
come in and try it out and see how it works.   Over 250 seniors attended the third annual 
SeniorNet computer lab open house in September.  The all-volunteer SeniorNet steering 
committee developed and presented five free workshops to help promote the computer lab, 
and they are to be commended for a great job.   The Fine Art Show on November 3 will be 
held in the lobby this year for greater exposure.  Attendance at Troy Daze was down.  David 
Ogg said there were complaints about how the bingo was run (could only win once).    
 
OLHSA:  Pauline Noce reported that she feels that Troy is excluded from many of their 
programs.  Seniors can visit the county website for information about programs for seniors 
including Bill’s Big Dig snow removal.  SOAR Optimists in Royal Oak provided gifts for needy 
seniors last year and may do it again this year.  The senior job-training program has a new 
sponsor and the Detroit Urban League will be handling the program now.   
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that there are no minutes and 
she is concerned about what is passed on.  They are still working on a directory.  
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there were no suggestions this month  



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        Oct. 5, 2006 

3 

 
Comments:   
 
James Berar stated that he has trouble hearing at the meetings and asked members to look up 
when they speak.  Carla will look at moving the group to a quieter room. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:40 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair               
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



DATE:        October 2, 2006
TO:             Phillip Nelson, City Manager
FROM:        Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of September 2006

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Fnd. New 1 $2,100,000.00 $12,645.00
Add/Alter 4 $301,000.00 $2,687.00
Wall 1 $75,000.00 $670.00

Sub Total 6 $2,476,000.00 $16,002.00

COMMERCIAL
Fnd. New 1 $465,000.00 $3,400.00
Tenant Completion 2 $80,000.00 $850.00
Add/Alter 15 $2,159,289.00 $17,159.00

Sub Total 18 $2,704,289.00 $21,409.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 11 $2,311,303.00 $17,786.00
Add/Alter 33 $1,133,549.00 $11,940.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 7 $60,800.00 $994.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 6 $107,337.00 $1,321.00
Repair 3 $99,314.00 $1,044.00
Wreck 8 $0.00 $470.00

Sub Total 68 $3,712,303.00 $33,555.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 6 $624,000.00 $5,238.00
Add/Alter 3 $29,600.00 $411.00

Sub Total 9 $653,600.00 $5,649.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 3 $2,026,000.00 $13,217.00

Sub Total 3 $2,026,000.00 $13,217.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 2 $1,225,000.00 $8,865.00

Sub Total 2 $1,225,000.00 $8,865.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 2 $30,000.00 $435.00
Signs 39 $0.00 $3,965.00
Fences 14 $0.00 $220.00

Sub Total 55 $30,000.00 $4,620.00

TOTAL 161 $12,827,192.00 $103,317.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2006
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 302 $3,020.00
Cert. of Occupancy 43 $3,139.60
Plan Review 158 $11,597.00
Microfilm 32 $446.00
Building Permits 161 $103,317.00
Electrical Permits 163 $11,622.00
Heating Permits 101 $5,090.00
Air Cond. Permits 31 $1,570.00
Plumbing Permits 113 $8,014.00
Storm Sewer Permits 39 $1,931.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 25 $851.00
Sewer Taps 23 $10,160.00

TOTAL 1191 $160,757.60

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2006
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 71 $355.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 21 $315.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 17 $17.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 7 $350.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 2 $20.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 1 $15.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 1 $10.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 22 $220.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 2 $30.00

TOTAL 25 $1,332.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2005 2005 2006 2006

JANUARY 93 $6,617,765.00 116 $7,273,163.00

FEBRUARY 133 $8,586,755.00 94 $6,659,691.00

MARCH 143 $19,405,253.00 127 $5,629,425.00

APRIL 234 $16,039,899.00 174 $5,766,996.00

MAY 229 $8,974,377.00 216 $11,290,598.00

JUNE 207 $14,432,280.00 218 $10,681,352.00

JULY 176 $7,490,327.00 198 $11,269,902.00

AUGUST 202 $13,132,327.00 150 $14,170,725.00

SEPTEMBER 207 $11,424,698.00 161 $12,827,192.00

OCTOBER 169 $12,606,760.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 137 $9,014,642.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 91 $13,489,338.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 2021 $141,214,421.00 1454 $85,569,044.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2006

12 9 4 9 7 9 6 4
11

0
10
20
30
40
50
60

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Oct 2, 2006 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2006Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter KIRCO CONSTRUCTION LLC 101 W BIG BEAVER 645  175,000
Commercial, Add/Alter WOODS CONSTRUCTION INC 650 JOHN R  250,000
Commercial, Add/Alter WOODS CONSTRUCTION INC 650 JOHN R  192,000
Commercial, Add/Alter FISHER DEVELOPMENT INC 2801 W BIG BEAVER D-128  187,289
Commercial, Add/Alter DOUBLEJACK ELECTRIC COMPANY 2240 CUNNINGHAM  1,000,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  1,804,289

Commercial, Foundation New GIEESON, C.E. 1430 W MAPLE 1470  465,000

Commercial, Foundation NewTotal  465,000

Industrial, Add/Alter WOJAS, PATRICK 1972 MEIJER  160,000

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  160,000

Industrial, Foundation New BEHR AMERICA INC 2716 DALEY  2,100,000

Industrial, Foundation NewTotal  2,100,000

Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter AIM CONSTRUCTION INC 44201 DEQUINDRE 5TH FL  176,000
Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter SKANSKA USA BUILDERS INC 44201 DEQUINDRE S PK  1,700,000
Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter KASCO INC 44199 DEQUINDRE 315  150,000

Inst./Hosp., Add/AlterTotal  2,026,000

Religious, Add/Alter MUIRHEAD CONSTRUCTION 4571 JOHN R -4577  225,000
Religious, Add/Alter KIRCO CONSTRUCTION LLC 3150 ADAMS  1,000,000

Religious, Add/AlterTotal  1,225,000

Total Valuation:  7,780,289Records  14



CITY COUNCIL EXPENSE REPORT
Month of September, 2006

Council Person Expense  Date Purpose Amount Totals

Beltramini, Robin 9/13/2006 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 123.72$            
October - December 2006

123.72$             
Broomfield, Cristina 9/13/2006 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 194.85$            

October - December 2006

194.85$             
Wade Fleming 9/13/2006 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 215.70$            

October - December 2006

215.70$             
Howrylak, Martin F. -$                  

-$                   
Lambert, David 9/13/2006 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 182.92$            

October - December 2006

182.92$             
Schilling, Louise E. 9/13/2006 Quarterly DSL Line 117.90$            

October - December 2006

117.90$             
Stine, Jeanne M. 9/13/2006 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 119.85$            

October - December 2006

119.85$             

Total for Month 954.94$            

NOTE: This report is presented in compliance with Rules of Procedure for the City Council,
            Item 18. Miscellaneous Expenses

Date Prepared: 9/29/2006
Final Preparation By: J. Nash

jn/S:/Finance/Template - City Council monthly expense report.xls

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



TO: MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL 
FROM: LORI GRIGG BLUHM, CITY ATTORNEY 

ROBERT F. DAVISSON, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
CHRISTOPHER J. FORSYTH, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY  
SUSAN M. LANCASTER, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
ALLAN T. MOTZNY, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 

DATE: October 9, 2006 

  
  

SUBJECT: 2006 THIRD QUARTER LITIGATION REPORT 
 

 
The following is the quarterly report of pending litigation and other matters of 

interest.  The accomplishments during the THIRD quarter of 2006 are in bold. 
 

A. ANATOMY OF THE CASE 
 

Once a lawsuit has been filed against the City or City employees, the City Attorney’s 
office prepares a memo regarding the allegations in the complaint.  At that time, our office 
requests authority from Council to represent the City and/or the employees.  Our office then 
engages in the discovery process, which generally lasts for several months, and involves 
interrogatories, requests for documents, and depositions.  After discovery, almost all cases 
are required to go through case evaluation (also called mediation).  In this process, three 
attorneys evaluate the potential damages, and render an award.  This award can be 
accepted by both parties, and will conclude the case.  However, if either party rejects a case 
evaluation award, there are potential sanctions if the trial result is not as favorable as the 
mediation award.  In many cases, a motion for summary disposition will be filed at the 
conclusion of discovery.  In all motions for summary disposition, the Plaintiff’s version of the 
facts are accepted as true, and if the Plaintiff still has failed to set forth a viable claim against 
the City, then dismissal will be granted.  It generally takes at least a year before a case will be 
presented to a jury.  It also takes approximately two years before a case will be finalized in 
the Michigan Court of Appeals and/or the Michigan Supreme Court.   

 
 

B. ZONING CASES 
 

These are cases where the property owner has sued for a use other than that for which 
the land is currently zoned and/or the City is suing a property owner to require 
compliance with the existing zoning provisions.  
 

1. Troy v. Papadelis and Papadelis v. Troy - This is a case filed by the City 
against Telly’s Nursery, seeking to enjoin the business from using the 
northern parcel for commercial purposes.  After a lengthy appellate history, 
an order was entered in the Oakland County Circuit Court, requiring 
compliance on or before April 29, 2002.  The Papadelis family failed to 
comply with the court’s order, and therefore a Contempt Motion was filed.  
Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Colleen O’Brien determined that the 
defendants were in contempt of court, and required them to pay $1,000 to 
the City of Troy.  However, the court also determined that the defendants 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02c



were in compliance with the City of Troy zoning ordinances as of the date 
of the court decision.  The Troy City Council authorized an appeal of this 
decision to the Michigan Court of Appeals.  It was filed on September 27, 
2002. The neighbors filed an application for leave to appeal, which was 
denied by the Michigan Court of Appeals on 2/10/03.   After receiving 
criminal citations from the City for expansion of the business, Papadelis 
filed a federal lawsuit against the City of Troy, alleging civil rights violations 
and seeking an injunction against the prosecution and/or further expansion.  
The neighboring property owners filed a Motion to Intervene, which was 
granted by Federal US District Court Judge Arthur Tarnow.  Troy filed a 
counterclaim in the Federal Court case but it was dismissed by Judge 
Tarnow, who refused to exercise jurisdiction over the counter-complaint, 
since it would require him to interpret the opinion of the Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge.  Troy has subsequently filed two separate motions to 
dismiss the Papadelis complaint. One of the motions asserted the same 
jurisdictional claim that was raised against the counter-complaint.  The 
Court granted Troy’s motion based on jurisdictional issues and dismissed 
the case without prejudice.  The court did not rule on the other motion, but 
instead, directed the Papadelises to re-file their case in state court.  The 
Papadelis family then re-filed its lawsuit in Oakland County Circuit Court.  
Troy filed an answer and a counterclaim.  Troy also immediately filed a 
motion for summary disposition seeking dismissal of the complaint and a 
judgment in favor of Troy. The counterclaim seeks an order requiring the 
Papadelis family to remove two greenhouses and other structures that 
have been built upon the property without approvals that are required 
under the zoning ordinance.  The Court scheduled an early intervention 
conference (settlement conference) for October 18, 2005.  The Court has 
set the hearing date for the Motion for Summary Disposition for January 4, 
2006.  Subsequent to the filing of Troy’s Motion for Summary Disposition, 
Plaintiffs’ filed a Cross Motion for Summary Disposition, and the hearing 
was rescheduled for January 18, 2006.  On February 17, 2006, the Court 
entered its written Opinion and Order, dismissing the Papadelis claim for 
money damages and their claim for injunctive relief.  However, the Court 
also granted Summary Disposition in favor of the Plaintiffs on their claim for 
declaratory relief, and held that “retail” activity was not occurring on the 
northern parcel, and that the “agricultural” activities on the northern parcel 
were protected under the Right to Farm Act.  Additionally the Court ruled 
the Plaintiffs’ were exempt from City permitting requirements under the 
agricultural building permit exemption of the State Construction Code Act.  
The Court also dismissed the City’s counterclaim.  Troy has filed an appeal 
with the Michigan Court of Appeals.  Plaintiffs’ have filed a cross appeal 
challenging the dismissal of their claims for money damages and injunctive 
relief.  All the required briefs have been filed with the Court of Appeals, 
which will either schedule an oral argument or will inform the parties that 
the case will be decided without oral argument.  Since this case was 
assigned to the expedited track for summary disposition appeals, a final 
decision on appeal is expected before the end of September of this year. 

 2



On June 16, 2006, the Building Department discovered that the Papadelis 
family was erecting a new, large pole barn structure on the property at 
3301 John R. Road.  This structure was likely in violation of local and/or 
state law.  The Building Department followed the procedure for issuing a 
Stop Work Order.  In addition, our office filed an emergency motion with the 
Court of Appeals, seeking to enjoin construction of the building pending 
final outcome of the appeal.  On June 21, 2006, the Court of Appeals 
granted the motion for immediate consideration, but denied the motion to 
enjoin construction of the building.  The denial of the motion has no bearing 
on the final outcome of this appeal, and if Troy ultimately prevails on 
appeal, the new building will have to be removed.  Despite the issuance of 
the Stop Work Order, the construction continued on the new building.  The 
Papadelis Family then filed a Motion to hold the City Attorney and the 
Director of Building and Zoning in contempt of court.  In this Motion, the 
Papadelis family argued that the Circuit Court ruling (Judge Colleen 
O’Brien) allows the construction of the new building without a permit and 
without having to comply with the zoning ordinance provisions regulating 
the size and location of buildings.  Judge O’Brien denied this Motion on 
June 28, 2006, and ruled that her earlier ruling (the ruling on appeal) was 
limited to the buildings on the property at the time of the ruling, and did not 
extend to allow for new construction on the site.  On September 19, 2006, 
the Court of Appeals affirmed the decisions of the Circuit Court.  
Thus, the Court affirmed the declaratory judgment in favor of the 
plaintiffs, but it also affirmed the dismissal of plaintiff’s civil rights 
claims against the City, Mark Stimac, and Marlene Struckman.   

 
 

2. Gerback v Troy, et al –The lawsuit stems from City Council’s denial of a 
requested re-zoning of a 2.74 acre parcel of property, located on the west side 
of Rochester Road, south of Trinway.  The property is currently zoned R-1C 
(one family residential).  Plaintiff unsuccessfully sought to re-zone the property 
to R-1T (one family attached residential).  Plaintiff argues in his complaint that 
the denial of the requested re-zoning was “arbitrary and capricious,” and fails 
to advance a legitimate government interest.  Count I of the complaint alleges 
a denial of substantive due process, and argues that the denial of the rezoning 
bears “no reasonable relationship to the health, safety and welfare of the public 
of Troy.”  Count II asserts an equal protection claim, where Plaintiff argues that 
he has been treated less favorably than other owners of “similarly situated” 
property, since properties of greater depths have received the requested R-1T 
zoning.  The complaint seeks an injunction that  “prevents the City of Troy from 
interfering with Plaintiff’s proposed use of the property.”  Troy filed an answer, 
affirmative defenses and a motion for summary disposition.  In November, this 
motion was granted in part and denied in part.  Plaintiff was granted the 
opportunity to amend the complaint.  Plaintiff has filed an amended complaint 
and is essentially raising the same claims that were raised in the original 
complaint.  Plaintiff argues that the R-1C zoning classification is arbitrary and 
capricious, and it denies him equal protection under the law.  The amended 

 3



complaint, like the original, seeks an injunction.  The parties have completed 
the discovery phase, and a trial date has been set.  Troy has filed a new 
motion for summary disposition, which argues that there are no genuine issues 
of material fact as to any of Plaintiff’s claims.  On July 10, 2006, the parties 
entered into a Consent Judgment, and the case is now closed.    

 
3. Gerback (as a member of 300 Park Venture, L.L.C.) v Troy – This lawsuit was 

filed August 25, 2005, but it was not served on Troy until September 20, 2005.    
The case involves a parcel consisting of 0.892 acres located on the northwest 
corner of Rochester Road and Marengo that is presently zoned R-1B (One 
Family Residential).  Plaintiff filed an application to rezone the property to B-1 
for the purpose of developing a Binson’s Home Health Care Center.  The 
Planning Commission voted to recommend that City Council deny the 
rezoning.  On August 1, 2005, City Council postponed the decision on the 
rezoning request until the first meeting in March 2006, to allow for the Planning 
Commission to consider amending the Future Land Use Plan in the Rochester 
Road Corridor between Square Lake Road and South Boulevard, before 
Council would make a decision on the rezoning request.  In count I of the 
complaint, the Plaintiff contends City Council has breached a clear legal duty 
by refusing to act on Plaintiff’s Rezoning Request.  He seeks a writ of 
mandamus requiring City Council to act on the rezoning request “within a 
reasonable time period, not to exceed twenty-one (21) days.”  Counts II and III 
allege City Council has effectively denied the rezoning request by the 
postponement.  He argues that such denial constitutes a violation of Plaintiff’s 
right to substantive due process (count II) and the right to equal protection 
under the law (count III).  In both counts II and III, Plaintiff seeks an injunction 
that prevents Troy “from interfering with Plaintiff’s proposed use of the 
Property.”  In addition to responding to the complaint, Troy also filed an 
immediate motion for summary disposition, arguing that the Plaintiff had failed 
to set forth a claim that entitled him to his requested relief.  The hearing on this 
motion is scheduled for January 4, 2006.  After a hearing, the Court granted 
Troy’s Motion for Summary Disposition in part, and dismissed Count I of 
Plaintiff’s complaint that sought a writ of mandamus.  As to the other two 
counts of the complaint, the Court determined there were issues of fact that 
could only be decided at a trial.  The parties are now conducting discovery in 
preparation for trial.   Plaintiff filed a motion to amend the complaint to reinstate 
the mandamus claim and to add a new claim for damages based on inverse 
condemnation.  After a hearing on the motion, the Court took the matter under 
advisement and indicated a written decision would be issued.  On June 21, 
2006, Judge Chabot issued her written opinion, denying the Plaintiff’s motion to 
amend the complaint.  Trial is scheduled for July 13, 2006.  At the request of 
Plaintiff, the trial has been rescheduled for October 30, 2006. 

 
4. D & K Hannawa, LLC v  Troy –The lawsuit was filed to amend the recorded 

plat known as Supervisor’s Plat No. 23.  In order to amend a recorded plat, a 
lawsuit must be filed and served on all property owners within 300 feet of the 
proposed development, as well as the state and local government and utility 

 4



companies.  This particular plat is proposed for amendment, since a platted 
private alley precludes their construction of their proposed building on Lots 1 
and 2.  Plaintiff D & K Hannawa, LLC is asking that the plat be amended as the 
first step in vacating the alley.  On July 10, 2006, the Troy City Council 
approved a consent judgment, which was subsequently entered with the 
Court.  An amended plat has also been prepared for review. 

 

5. Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Ltd.Partnership v. City of Troy, et. al. –
The lawsuit was filed, seeking a Declaratory Judgment that a 43-foot 
easement is a “public” roadway easement under the control of the City 
of Troy.  Garrett Family Ltd. Partnership has an option to purchase an 
outlot that is currently owned by Mr. and Mrs. Karagiannakis.  The 
property would be a part of a proposed site condominium project.  
However, Troy’s Zoning Ordinance requires that there be public street 
access for all new residential development.   Therefore, this lawsuit was 
filed to convert the 43- foot wide driveway into a “public roadway.”   Our 
office filed an immediate Motion for Summary Disposition, arguing that 
there is no authority for the Court to grant the requested relief, since the 
Land Division Act requires a re-plat action to accomplish what the 
Plaintiffs propose.  In a re-plat action, the Plaintiffs would file the case 
against all property owners within 300 feet, as well as the utilities and the 
units of government.  Plaintiffs’ response to the City’s Motion for 
Summary Disposition is due on October 18, 2006.  Oral arguments are 
scheduled for November 29, 2006. 

 
 

C.  EMINENT DOMAIN CASES 
 

These are cases in which the City wishes to acquire property for a public 
improvement and the property owner wishes to contest either the necessity or the 
compensation offered. In cases where only the compensation is challenged, the City 
obtains possession of the property almost immediately, which allows for major projects to 
be completed.    

 
1.  Parkland Acquisition (Section 36) 

 
1. Troy v. Premium Construction, L.L.C. – The City has filed this lawsuit against 

Premium Construction, L.L.C. (John Pavone and Mukesh Mangala) to acquire 
property for a park in Section 36.  After a prolonged discovery process, a 
bench trial began on February 22, 2005.  The Court had to interrupt the bench 
trial proceedings with a number of other matters, including criminal jury trials, 
and had the parties on stand by and/or took limited testimony for several 
months.  The last testimony in the lengthy bench trial was taken on June 10, 
2005.  After the testimony, the Judge required the parties to submit post-trial 
“Finding of Facts and Conclusion of Law” and a summary Memorandum, 

 5



which were timely submitted by July 13, 2005.  Replies to those briefs were 
due July 20, 2005.  The parties are now anxiously waiting for the Judge’s 
decision.   It is unknown when the decision will be rendered.  After several 
months, Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Mark Goldsmith requested 
portions of the transcript of the lengthy trial proceedings.  Unfortunately, this 
request has been unexpectedly delayed, since the transcribing court reporter 
broke his wrist, and is unable to complete the work himself and/or have others 
complete it for him.  The parties continue to wait for the Court’s decision.   The 
Court issued his written opinion on February 3, 2006.  The Defendants filed a 
Motion for Attorney Fees, and a hearing on that request was scheduled for 
April 5, 2006.  The Court issued a written order on June 9, 2006 determining 
the amount of attorney fees.  An appeal of the Court’s decisions was filed with 
the Michigan Court of Appeals on June 30, 2006.  The Michigan Court of 
Appeals subsequently ordered mandatory facilitation, which is 
continuing.  In the meantime, the parties are currently waiting for the trial 
court reporter to complete the transcripts of the proceedings for delivery 
to the Court of Appeals.  The completion of this transcript will trigger the 
due dates for the briefs to be filed in this case.     

 
  

D. CIVIL RIGHTS CASES 
 

 These are cases that are generally filed in the federal courts, under 42 U.S.C. Section 
1983.  In these cases, the Plaintiffs argue that the City and/or police officers of the City of 
Troy somehow violated their civil rights.   
 

 There are no pending civil rights cases at this time.  
 
 

E. PERSONAL INJURY AND DAMAGE CASES 
 

These are cases in which the Plaintiff claims that the City or City employees were 
negligent in some manner that caused injuries and/or property damage.  The City enjoys 
governmental immunity from ordinary negligence, unless the case falls within one of four 
exceptions to governmental immunity:  a) defective highway exception, which includes 
sidewalks and road way claims; b) public building exception, which imposes liability only 
when injuries are caused by a defect in a public building; c) motor vehicle exception, 
which imposes liability when an employee is negligent when operating their vehicle; d) 
proprietary exception, where liability is imposed when an activity is conducted primarily 
to create a profit, and the activity somehow causes injury or damage to another; e)  
trespass nuisance exception, which imposes liability for the flooding cases.     

 
There are no pending personal injury cases at this time.  

 
 

 6



F. MISCELLANEOUS CASES 
 

1. In Re Hooters of Troy Inc. – Hooters has filed this lawsuit to challenge the June 
19, 2006 City Council denial of their application to transfer a liquor license and 
entertainment permit.  Hooters was seeking to re-locate their business from 
John R to Rochester Road, to the building that was previously occupied by the 
Wagon Wheel Saloon.   Hooters has signed agreements with the former 
owners (Sign of the Beef Carver- Wagon Wheel), for the building and also the 
liquor license with entertainment permit.  Pursuant to state law, local legislative 
approval is required for a transfer of Class C Liquor License and entertainment 
permit.  In their complaint, Hooter’s alleges that the City Council denial of the 
transfer of the liquor license violates their equal protection rights and due 
process rights.  They are asking the Court for an order of superintending 
control, which means they are asking a Circuit Court Judge to overrule City 
Council’s decision.  Hooters is also asking for costs, attorney fees, and 
incidental damages as a result of the delay in moving its operation to 
Rochester Road.  Shortly after filing their complaint, Hooter’s filed a 
motion requesting a superintending control order. On July 26, 2006 
Oakland County Circuit Court Judge John McDonald, after hearing 
argument, denied Hooter’s motion and dismissed their case. Judge 
McDonald in making his ruling, stated that municipalities are afforded 
broad discretion in review applications for new or transferred liquor 
licenses, and that Troy City Council exercised this discretion properly in 
denying Hooter’s request for to transfer a Class C Liquor License and 
new entertainment permit.  On August 4, 2006, Hooters filed a claim of 
appeal with the Michigan Court of Appeals. They also filed a motion for 
immediate consideration and motion for peremptory reversal arguing 
that Judge McDonald’s decision was so blatantly wrong that immediate 
reversal is warranted. On August 16, 2006, the Court of Appeals granted 
Hooter’s motion for immediate consideration but denied their motion for 
peremptory reversal. Hooter’s appeal is still pending, and all the required 
briefs have been filed with the Court of Appeals.   

 
G. CRIMINAL APPEALS  

 
1. People v Robert Toma – Mr. Toma pled guilty to being a Minor in 

Possession of Alcohol.  However, after the sentencing, Mr. Toma filed 
an Application for Leave to Appeal with the Oakland County Circuit 
Court, arguing that his sentence exceeded the maximum sentence for 
this misdemeanor offense.  The Appeal was denied by the Oakland 
County Circuit Court on July 19, 2006. 

 
 

If you have any questions concerning these cases, please let us know.   

 7



campbellld
Text Box
J-02d



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



10/23/06 PH ZOTA Z-714 Prop. The Enclave Senior Housing; Sec 9-R-1B to R-EC
10/23/06 PH Prop. Estab. of IDD and IFEC -Grid4 Comm-2107 Crooks

S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

October 2006
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30

November 2006October 2006

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun

October 1

2
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

3
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
(Council Boardroom)

4
8:30am BUILDING CODE 

BOARD OF APPEALS 
(Conference Room 
LL)

5 6 7

8

9 10
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

11 12 13 14

15

16
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

17
3:00pm Brownfield 

Redevelopment  
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission (C

18
7:30am CANCELLED DDA 

Meeting (Conference 
Room Lower Level)

19 20 21

22

23
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

24
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
(Council Boardroom)

25 26 27 28

29

30 31

mccombca
Text Box
J-05



10/23/06 PH ZOTA Z-714 Prop. The Enclave Senior Housing; Sec 9-R-1B to R-EC
10/23/06 PH Prop. Estab. of IDD and IFEC -Grid4 Comm-2107 Crooks

S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30

November 2006
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

December 2006November 2006

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
November 1

8:30am BUILDING CODE 
BOARD OF APPEALS 
(Conference Room 
LL)

2 3 4

5

6 7
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
(Council Boardroom)

8 9 10 11

12

13
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

14
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

15
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

16 17 18

19

20
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

21
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

22 23
City Hall Closed

Thanksgiving

24 25

26

27
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

28
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
(Council Boardroom)

29 30



10/23/06 PH ZOTA Z-714 Prop. The Enclave Senior Housing; Sec 9-R-1B to R-EC
10/23/06 PH Prop. Estab. of IDD and IFEC -Grid4 Comm-2107 Crooks

S M T W T F S
1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

December 2006
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

January 2007December 2006

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
December 1 2

3

4
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

5
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
(Council Boardroom)

6
8:30am BUILDING CODE 

BOARD OF APPEALS 
(Conference Room 
LL)

7 8 9

10

11 12
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

13 14 15 16

17

18
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

19
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

20
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

21 22
City Hall Closed

23

24

25
City Hall Closed

26 27 28 29
City Hall Closed

30

31



TO: The Mayor and Members of City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: October 10, 2006 

  
  

SUBJECT: D & K Hannawa v. City of Troy  
 

 

 
  

D & K Hannawa has proposed a development at the northwest corner of the 
intersection of Crooks and Maple Road.  However, in order to complete this development, D 
& K Hannawa, L.L.C. (hereafter Hannawa) was required to file a lawsuit against the City of 
Troy, other governmental entities and utilities, as well as all neighboring property owners 
within 300 feet. The lawsuit was required under the Land Division Act state statute, since 
some of the proposed development would have been located on private alleys that were 
designated on the original plat (Lots 1 and 2 of Supervisor’s Plat No. 23).  

 In July 2006, the City Council approved a consent judgment, allowing for the 
requested vacation of the private alleys.  All other parties similarly agreed to the entry of the 
consent judgment, and the case was concluded upon the Court’s entry of the order.   

 The consent judgment requires the submission of a revised plat for review and 
approval by the State of Michigan.  Although not required by state statute, the consent 
judgment also required that the Plaintiffs submit a copy of the proposed revised plat to the 
City of Troy, which is a courtesy designed to keep the City informed about any new plat 
submissions.   The proposed revised plat is attached for your review.   City Administration 
has reviewed this revised plat, and has determined that it satisfies all of the requirements of 
the consent judgment, as well as other requirements of the City of Troy.   

Unless City Council has any objections, City Administration will acknowledge receipt 
and approval of the revised plat, as required by the Court order.  This revised plat would then 
be forwarded to the State of Michigan for final approval.   

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-06







campbellld
Text Box
J-07


	AGENDA: October 16, 2006
	GOALS
	AGENDA:  Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	Proclamation – Friends of the Troy Public Library Recognitio


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 226) 

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Rezoning Application (File No. Z 180-B) – Proposed Binso

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):
	Friends of the Troy Public Library Recognition Week – Octobe

	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  None Submitted
	E-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Stat
	E-6 Announcement of Public Hearing – Community Development B
	E-7 2006 Request for Waive Recapture Form for Community Deve
	E-8 Proposed Co-location on Lowery Street Communications Tow
	E-9 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Edenberry 
	E-10 Request for Acceptance of an Agreement to Purchase Real
	E-11 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Sani

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Di
	F-2 Bid Waiver – Purchase of In-Car Video System
	F-3 Papadelis v. City of Troy
	F-4 Second Amendment to Chapter 42 – Flood Plain Management 
	F-5 Preliminary Site Plan Review and Amended Consent Order a

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: Z 714) – Propo

	G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1 Proposed Cancellation of November 27, 2006 Regular City 

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Troy Youth Council/Final – May 24, 2006
	Historic Commission/Final – June 28, 2006
	Election Commission/Final – July 7, 2006
	Traffic Committee/Final – July 19, 2006
	Historic District Commission/Final – August 15, 2006
	Troy Youth Council/Draft – August 23, 2006
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – Sep
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – Sep
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – September 6, 2006
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – September 7, 
	Planning Commission/Final – September 12, 2006
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – September 26, 2006
	Election Commission/Draft – October 2, 2006
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – October 5, 20

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of Sep
	Finance Department – City Council Expense Report for Septemb
	City Attorney’s Office – 2006 Third Quarter Litigation Repor
	Council Member Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – MML Conv

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Appreciation to Lt. Rossman from Jim Buell of Alli

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding D &
	J-7  Communication from Michigan Liquor Control Commission L

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



